
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT

Regular Board Meeting 

3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923 

August 25, 2022 
Thursday 

9:00AM 

1



 
 

  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT   

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
  Thursday, 9:00 a.m., July 28, 2022 

Via Teleconference Webinar 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  
 
Present: Directors: Greg D’Ambrosio, President Ken White and President Pro-Tem Robert 

Siegfried 
 
Absent: Directors: Mike Rachel and Townsend 

 
A quorum was present.  

 
Others:     Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD or District) 

Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
Ed Waggoner, Plant Superintendent, CAWD 
Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD 
Seth Steele -Freitas, Collections/Maintenance Utility Worker I, CAWD 
Domine Barringer, Board Secretary, CAWD 
Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD Legal Counsel 
Peter McKee, Board Member of Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) 
Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 
Nick Becker, P.E. Deputy General Manager/District Engineer 
Yuriana Nunez, Administrative Coordinator 
 

1. Public Comments: No public comments 
 

2. Agenda Changes:  
 

a. Item #28 page 202 – insert the final bid award information, which occurred on 
7-26-22 

b. Item #4 the employee recognition of achievement for Mike Skinkle will be 
moved to the August board meeting. 

 
3. New Employee Introduction – Seth Steele-Freitas, Collections/Maintenance Utility 

Worker I  
 The board gave a warm welcome to Mr. Steele-Freitas.  

 
4. California Water Environment Association- Employee Recognition of Achievement-    

Grade IV Mechanical Technologist- Mike Skinkle 
The employee recognition will occur at the August board meeting 

 
 

2



 

2 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS 
The Consent Agenda consists of routine items for which Board approval can be taken with a single 
motion and vote. A Board Member may request that any item be placed on the Regular Agenda for 
separate consideration. 
 

 
Board Action 

A motion to receive and approve the consent agenda was made by Director D’Ambrosio 
and seconded by Director Siegfried. After a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously received 
and approved the following Consent Calendar/Agenda items: 
 

5.  Approve June 30, 2022, Regular Board Meeting Minutes, July 20, 2022 Special Meeting    
 Board Retreat Minutes     

6.  Receive and Accept Bank Statement Review by Hayashi Wayland – June 2022      
7.  Receive and Accept Schedule of Cash Receipts & Disbursements – June 2022     
8.  Approve Register of Disbursements – Carmel Area Wastewater District – June 2022    
9.  Approve Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project – June 2022   

10. Receive and Accept Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules – June 2022    
11. Receive and Accept Collection System Superintendent’s Report – June, May      

  & April 2022  
12. Receive and Accept Safety and Regulatory Compliance Report – June 2022     
13. Receive and Accept Treatment Facility Operations Report – June, May      

  & April 2022 
14. Receive and Accept Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report – June 2022    
15. Receive and Accept Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan      
16. Receive and Accept Project Summaries – Capital & Non-Capital       
17. Receive and Accept Plant Operations Report – June 2022       
18. Receive and Accept Maintenance Projects Report – June 2022       
19. Receive and Accept Engineering Report – June 2022       

ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are acted 
upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) Public Comments, 
and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 
 
RESOLUTIONS 

 
20. Resolution No. 2022-43; Report by Maintenance Superintendent, Chris Foley 

 
Board Action 

A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by 
Director D’Ambrosio. Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-43, authorizing the General Manager to enter into a contract with Mailey Electric 
for electrical services in fiscal year 2022-2023 in an amount not to exceed $120,000. 

3



 

3 
 
 

 
21. Resolution No. 2022-44; Report by Superintendent Of Collections, Daryl Lauer 

 
Board Action 

A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director D’Ambrosio and seconded by 
President White. Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-44, revising the fee for the plumbing permit/inspection fee as adopted by 
Ordinance No. 85-1 commencing August 1, 2022. 
 

22. Resolution No. 2022-45 ; Report by Plant Superintendent Ed Waggoner 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution as amended was made by Director Siegfried and 
seconded by Director D’Ambrosio. Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously 
passed Resolution 2022-45,  authorizing the General Manager to invite bids for Biosolids 
Hauling & Disposal Services. 
 
Director Siegfried requested that resolution 2022-45 include that the transport and disposal 
of the sludge take title at the time the material is deposited in the contractor’s receptacle and 
requested that this language be in the final contract.  
 

23. Resolution No. 2022-46; Report by Superintendent Operations, Ed Waggoneer 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Siegfried  and seconded by 
President White. Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-46, authorizing the General Manger to enter into a service agreement with Applied 
Marine Sciences for the preparation of a work plan and study of the District’s effluent 
effects on the Carmel Bay Area of Special Biological Significance, with an amount not to 
Exceed $37,290. 
 

24. Resolution No. 2022-47; User Fee RFP -Postponed until September 2022  
 

Board Action 
A motion was made by President White and seconded by Director Siegfried to postpone 
circulating a Request For Proposal (RFP) for a Sewer User Fee Rate Model Study at an 
estimated cost of $50,000, until additional data can be gathered. Following a roll call 
vote, the Board unanimously agree to the postponement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4



 

4 
 
 

25. Resolution No. 2022-48; Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by 
Director D’Ambrosio. Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-48, authorizing the General Manager to execute a professional services agreement 
with Kennedy Jenks Consultants in an amount not to exceed $104,950 for Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP) Vactor Receiving Station Design-(Project #22-06)Vactor 
Dumping Station Design contract. 
 

26. Resolution No. 2022-49; Report by Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by President White and seconded by 
Director D’Ambrosio Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-49, authorizing an Amendment No. 3 in the amount of $126,270 For the SRT, Inc. 
Engineering Services Contract for the Carmel Meadows Pipeline Replacement Project #19-
03 in a Not to Exceed Contract Amount of $471,415. 
 

27. Resolution No. 2022-50; Report by Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by 
Director D’Ambrosio. Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-50, authorizing the General Manager to amend a contract with MNS Engineers to 
complete potholing for utilities and redesign services for the Pescadero Creek Area Pipe 
Relocation Project #21-05 in an amount not to exceed total contract amount of $247,339. 
 

28. Resolution No. 2022-51; Report by Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by President White and seconded by 
Director Siegfried. Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-51, awarding a contract for the 2022-2023 Manhole Rehabilitation Project to the 
lowest qualified responsible bidder and authorizing the General Manager to sign and 
execute a contract for Express Sewer & Drains, Inc. in an amount not to exceed 
$343,975.80. 
 
 

29. Resolution No. 2022-52; Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by 
Director D’Ambrosio. Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-52, amending the District Purchasing Policy to authorize District Engineers with 
purchasing authority up to $5,000.  
 

5



 

5 
 
 

30. Resolution No. 2022-53; Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by President White and seconded by 
Director D’Ambrosio. Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-53, proclaiming a local emergency, ratifying the proclamation of a State of 
Emergency by Governor’s Order #N-25-20 dated March 4, 2020, and authorizing remote 
teleconference meetings of the legislative bodies of CAWD for the period August 1 Through 
August 30, 2022, pursuant to the Brown Act provisions.  

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

31. General Manager Report – oral report  
 

• Staff  is working on a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the Carmel River Free 
Project and the County of Monterey would like the MOU completed by August 3rd. The 
General Manager stated that any fines or interest due to the County’s negligence is their 
responsibility. The Plant Engineer is currently looking at the Plans to respond to the County. 

 
• A discussion regarding the ethics  training would be most likely occur after the September 

2022 board meeting.  
 

OTHER ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

32. Annual Disclosure of Reimbursements of at least $100 – Report by, General Manager, Barbara 
Buikema   
 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by President White and seconded by 
Director D’Ambrosio. Following a roll call vote, the Board unanimously accepted the 
Reimbursement Report for fiscal year 2021-22. 

 
33. Topics for Upcoming Fall 2022 CAWD Connections –   Report by, General Manager, Barbara     

Buikema  
 

• There was discussion about generating some public relations material about the District. The 
discussion also included informing the public about what the District does regarding fire 
abatement and the projects that improve the environment.  This would be done through the 
newsletter. 

 
34. Bond vs. Bond Fund – report by, General Manager, Barbara Buikema  

 
• There was a general discussion on the difference between a bond verses a bond fund.  
• Director Siegfried wants to know why CAWD does not follow the 60/40 split on the fixed pension 

income practices that other state pension funds follow. Director D’Ambrosio requested that 
Director Siegfried bring his questions to the Pension Committee.  

•  The General Manager reminded the board that CAWD’s Pension Plan is fully funded.  
 

6



 

6 
 
 

• President White requested that this topic be moved to the Committee with a consultant to be 
brought in after the Pension Committee meets. Wellington stated that an advisor be present when 
discussing this topic. The board provided a consensus on the above order of the discussion 
format.  

 
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

35. Monthly Construction Update of Project #18-01 Electrical/Mechanical Rehab    
and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement – Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 
 

36. Pacific Gas & Electric Energy Use History-Summary – Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 
 

37. June 24, 2022 Pebble Beach Community Service District Meeting-Report by General Manager, 
Barbara Buikema 
 

38. Special Districts Association  Meeting-Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema 
 

39. Announcements on Subjects of Interest to the Board Made by Members 
of the Board or Staff         
Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning their activities 
and/or meetings or conferences attended. 

 
PBCSD Board Public Meeting Notice & Agenda – The next PBCSD meeting is scheduled for: 
Friday, July 29, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. – Greg D’Ambrosio is scheduled to attend. 
Friday, August 26, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. – Cancelled. 

Special Districts Association of Monterey County – The next SDA meeting is scheduled for: 
Tuesday, October 20, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. – Director Siegfried is scheduled to attend. 

Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) Meeting – The next RMC meeting is scheduled for:  
Tuesday, November 15, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. Director Townsend and Director White are scheduled to 
attend. 

 
 

40. CLOSED SESSION: As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the Board of 
Directors may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider specific matters dealing with litigation, 
certain personnel matters, real property negotiations, or to confer with the District’s Meyers-
Milias-Brown representative. 

 
A consensus to approve the signed letter regarding Legal Counsel’s Performance 
Evaluation was made by President White and seconded by Director D’Ambrosio. There 
was also a board consensus not to conduct the agendized closed session and agreed to 
move item B to the September board meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7



 

7 
 
 

 
 

A. Public Employee Recognition Letter Evaluation Period July 1, 2021 to June 30,2022 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 the Board will meet in closed session to 
consider a Personnel Matter:  Legal Counsel Performance Evaluation-Approved the 
signed letter 
 

 

B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 the Board will meet in closed session to 
consider a Personnel Matter:  General Manager Performance Evaluation-Moved to the 
September board meeting 

 

 
41. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the President adjourned the meeting at 
10:33 a.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday,  August 25, 2022, or an 
alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar.  

 
As Reported To: 

________________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

APPROVED: 

________________________________________________ 
Ken White, President 

 

 

 

8



CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
SALARY & BENEFITS COMMITTEE MEETING 

July 25, 2022, 11:00 a.m. 
Via teleconference - ZOOM 

 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL:   
The meeting was called to order at 11:00 a.m. 
 
Present:  President Ken White, Committee member 

Director Michael Rachel, Committee member 
Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

  
Absent:   None 
 
Appearances/Public Comments: None 
 
Agenda Changes:   None 
 

Agenda Items: 

• Salary Classification Schedule was discussed and staff was given direction to 
return with additional information. 
 

Adjournment: There being no further business to come before the Committee, the 
meeting concluded at 1:50 p.m.  The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., 
Thursday, August 25, 2022, or an alternate acceptable date via teleconference webinar.  The 
teleconference webinar is hosted through Zoom and you may receive access by visiting our 
website homepage, www.cawd.org, calling the District office at 831-624-1248 or via email at 
downstream@cawd.org. 

 

As Reported To: 

_________________________________ 
Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

APPROVED: 

______________________________ 
Ken White, President 

9

http://www.cawd.org/


 

        CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD) 
PENSION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

August 4, 2022, Thursday, 1:00 p.m.  

Via teleconference webinar 
 

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL:  
The meeting was called to order at 1:03 p.m. 
 
Present:  CAWD President Pro Tem Robert Siegfried, Committee member 

Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
Robert Wellington, Legal Counsel 

        Bill Hastie, Managing Partner, Register Principal, Hastie Financial Group AIFA®, RMA®, 
C(k)P®, CPFA® 

Haley Hitchman, Hastie Financial Group, Partner, Financial Advisor, AIF®, CPFA 
 

Absent:   Director Michael Rachel, Committee member 
 

Appearances/Public Comments: None 
 

Agenda Changes:  None 
 
AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
The committee discussed the following agenda items: 

1. 2nd Quarter Portfolio Review 
2. Pen Checks Service 

 
The committee decided to recommend that the attorney perform background checks on Pen Checks.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting concluded at 
2:00 p.m. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, August 25, 2022, or an 
alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar. The teleconference webinar is hosted through Zoom and 
you may receive access by visiting our website homepage, www.cawd.org, calling the District office at 831-624-
1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org. 

As Reported To: 

__________________________________________ 
Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________________________ 
Ken White, President 

10

https://www.hastiefinancialgroup.com/team-member-01/bill-hastie
https://www.hastiefinancialgroup.com/team-member-01/bill-hastie


11



12



Capital Compensated Defend or COUNTY Chase Chase
Capital Improvement General O & M Accruals Managed  Retreat Total Fund Bank O & M Bank PR L.A.I.F.
Fund Reserve Fund Reserve Reserve Balance Balance Balance Balance

BALANCE BEGINNING OF MONTH $4,162,121 $21,222,338 $12,380,139 $274,162 $4,000,000 $42,038,760 $422,358 $11,800 $1,198,228

Receipts:
   User Fees 
   Property Taxes 
   PBCSD Treatment Fees 230,000
   Reclamation O & M reimbursement 86,989
   Reclamation capital billing
   Permits 6,210
   PBCSD capital billing
   Other misc. revenue 23,490
   Interest income 2,244
   Connection Fees
   CCLEAN receipts 19,346
   CRFree Project grant funds
   Sale of dump truck
   Hatton Canyon Grant Funds 30,013
   Void checks-replace lost check
        Total Receipts 0 0 0 0 0 0 396,048 0 2,244

Fund Transfers:
   Transfers to Chase Bank O&M (335,000) 335,000
   Transfers to Chase Bank PR (188,269) (411,731) 600,000
   Transfer to Defend or Managed Retreat Fund (1,000,000) 1,000,000
   Adjust compensated accruals at year end
   Rebalance Capital and O&M Reserves 8,007,539 (4,254,215) (3,753,324)
        Total Transfers 8,007,539 (5,442,484) (4,165,055) 0 1,000,000 (600,000) 265,000 335,000 0

Disbursements:
   Operations and capital 704,459
   Payroll & payroll taxes 342,897
   Employee Dental reimbursements 4,652
   CALPERS EFT 52,410
   CAWD SAM pension EFT 0
   CAWD pension loans EFT 881
   Home Depot EFT 0
   US Bank EFT 4,836
   Deferred comp contributions EFT 17,820 0
   PEHP contributions EFT 3,168 0
   Bank/ADP fees 0 820
   Highlands Bond Debt Service Payment
   Annual County admin billing fee
   Negative interest adjustment from 2010 34
   Unfunded CALPERS liability 9,650
         Total Disbursements 0 0 34 0 0 34 797,875 343,717 0

BALANCE END OF MONTH 12,169,660 15,779,854 8,215,050 274,162 5,000,000 41,438,726 285,531 3,083 1,200,472

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - JULY 2022

13



0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

18,000,000

20,000,000

Capital Capital Reserve O&M Compensated Absences Managed Retreat Reserve

12,169,660 

15,779,854 

8,215,050 

274,162 

5,000,000 

9,809,191 

18,797,671 

6,840,232 

281,144 

4,000,000 

2022-23
2021-22

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



 
  

 

STAFF REPORT   
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 
 
DATE:            August 25, 2022  
         
SUBJECT: Monthly Report – July 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
       
Permits Issued 
 
Sewer Lateral Permits issued in July                ……………........................                           22 
 
Total Fees     ....................................................................................................... $3,840.00 
 
 
Maintenance  
Attached is a map of the areas cleaned and Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) inspected 
in past three months. There were 48,567 feet of sewer lines cleaned, there was 5,043 feet 
CCTV inspections during the month of July and manhole inspections have been 
completed.   
 
Recent Line Cleaning Summary 

Cleaning period Footage 
Cleaned 

Percentage Cleaned Size of Pipe Cleaned 

July 48,567 ft. 11.81% 6 – 15 inches 
June 57,910 ft. 14.08% 6 - 12 inches 
May 47,446 ft. 11.54% 6 – 12 inches 

 

 

 

33



 
  

 
Annual Line Cleaning Graph 
 

 
 
 

Line Cleaning Table 

Total Target Amount 
(Linear Feet) 

Cumulative Complete 
(Linear Feet) 

Remaining (Linear Feet) 

615,000 326,629 288,371 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



 
  

 
 
 
CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target) 
 

 
 
CCTV Table 

Total Required 
amount (Linear Feet) 

Cumulative Complete 
(Linear Feet) 

Remaining (Linear Feet) 

408,672 396,772 11,900 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



 
  

 
Manhole Inspection Progress Graph (Riverwatch Settlement Agreement Target) 
 

 
 
Manhole Inspection Table 

Total Required Amount 
(Manholes) 

Actual Complete 
(Manholes) 

Remaining                  
(Manholes) 

1428 1428 0 
 
Riverwatch Update 

• Staff has completed the manhole inspection part of the River Watch Settlement. 
The Principal Engineer will use this data to schedule rehabilitation or 
replacement of damaged or deteriorated manholes. Project 21-06 Manhole 
Rehabilitation project was awarded at the last board meeting and will get 
underway in the upcoming months.  

• Once the CCTV inspections and Pumps Station evaluations are completed, the 
Principal Engineer will use the information for the final Collection System Asset 
Management Plan.  

 
 

36



 
  

 
Staff Development 

• Staff completed several in-person tail gate trainings.  
 
Service calls responded to by crew 
 

Date Time Callout Resolution 
7/8/2022 6:28 PM Lateral Overflow Called by homeowner for a lateral 

overflow. Staff cleaned the District 
main line and did not encounter any 
problems in the main line. Staff 
informed owner to call a plumber of 
their choice. 

7/16/2022 11:25 AM Lateral Overflow Called by homeowner for a lateral 
overflow. Staff cleaned the District 
main line and did not encounter any 
problems in the main line. Staff 
informed owner to call a plumber of 
their choice. 

7/21/2022 5:30 AM Power Fail The power failure at all pump 
stations lasted 20 minutes, which 
was caused by a PG&E service 
interruption . Staff monitored all 
stations until power was restored.   
 

 
 
USA Location Requests – 124 
Plumbing permit inspections – 21 
Private Sewer Lateral Compliance Certificates Issued – 20 
 
 
FUNDING 
N/A 
 

  

37



8/8/2022

38

Lauer
Text Box
July (Red)                 48,567 feetJune (Yellow)           57,910 feetMay (Green)             47,446 feet                       Monthly Cleaning Map 



8/8/2022

39

Lauer
Text Box
July (Red)                  5,043 feetJune                          No CCTV ActivityMay (Green)              5,107 feet                      Monthly CCTV Map



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 
(S/C Admin Dias) 

 
Date:  August 25, 2022 
 
Subject: Monthly Safety Report (for July 2022) 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Safety & Training 
 

• July 6- Tailgate Training- New Employee Onboarding Training. S/C Admin Dias 
presented on training protocols for new employees. New employees need multiple 
types of safety and competency trainings which must be documented. A new 
tracking form has been developed for each position with input from the Safety 
Administrator and their respective supervisor. Trainings are done chronologically 
with goals for the first week, the first month, first quarter, etc. Because the majority 
of injuries to new employees occur within the first six months, staff was advised to 
make sure to closely observe trainees and stop them if they are not completing the 
work safely.     
 

• July 13- Tailgate Training; Updated Injury Illness Prevention Program (IIPP). S/C 
Admin Dias gave required training on the updated IIPP. Draft updates to the 
program were made earlier in the year and finalized in July. An IIPP can be 
considered the general “umbrella” safety program for a business. It describes how 
the various safety programs will be implemented, how training will occur, the 
worker’s right to a safe work environment, and where the IIPP can be found for 
employee review.   

 
 
 

  

40



• July 20- Tailgate Training; Carbon Monoxide. Chris Foley, Maintenance 
Superintendent, gave a presentation on carbon monoxide.  
 
While there are no ongoing sources of carbon monoxide generated at the plant or in 
Collections, carbon monoxide could potentially build up in an enclosed space if a 
back-up generator is running during an emergency. Also discussed during the 
training was to not place portable generators or running vehicles near manholes 
during a confined space entry.  
 

• July 27- Tailgate Training; Earthquake Awareness.  Patrick Treanor, Plant 
Engineer, presented on earthquake awareness. He noted that most of the structural 
engineering designs (foundations, anchoring, building frames) are driven by 
earthquake hazards. If there was to be a major quake on the San Andreas fault, it 
was possible some of the structures on site could settle. S/C Admin Dias added that 
a key priority after a quake would be to assess if any of the digester gas pipelines 
had been damaged. They contain up to 70% methane and leaking digester gas 
would pose an explosion hazard. Another high priority would be to inspect all the 
bulk chemical tanks and connections. 

 
Ongoing Safety Improvements 
During July, Maintenance Superintendent Chris Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to 
implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the Safety 
Committee. Activities during July included:  
 

• Update of Low-Voltage Electrical Safety Program and Training. California 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration requires that a program be in place 
to protect against electrocution while working on energized (electrified) systems. In 
the vast majority of cases the equipment is disconnected, locked out and tested 
before beginning the work. However, sometimes the equipment must remain 
energized during the work to test the equipment or diagnose a problem. In these 
cases specific protocols and training is needed.  The work includes, installing, 
removing, using, or maintaining on any energized electrical equipment, system or 
tool 600 volts or less. This program shall be used in conjunction with the CAWD’s 
Lockout/Tagout Program and shall apply to all situations that could place an 
employee in danger of any electrical hazard. 
 
In addition, any work done on energized systems must be performed by a 
“qualified” person(s). Both maintenance mechanics took the required training and 
are now qualified. 
 
 

41



 
 
 
 

Tours and Outreach 
 

• Tours. Tours remain on temporary hold while several areas of the plant are being 
impacted by Phase II construction activities.  
 
 

Injuries; First Aid Incidents; Workers Compensation Claims 
There were two first aid injuries in July.  The first occurred when a worker punctured the 
top of his finger with a box cutter while cutting away some ice-plant. The worker was 
advised to use the correct tool for the type of work. The second occurred when a worker 
cut his finger on a damaged steel bollard. The bollard had been grazed by a piece of 
equipment leaving a sharp barb. The worker went to brush it off with his hand not 
realizing the barb was still attached and was extremely sharp. The barb was ground off to 
prevent future injuries. In both cases the worker cleaned the wound, applied a bandage 
and continued to work the remainder of the day without further complications. 
 
The employee with the Workers Comp foot injury (as reported in February’s report) 
continued to improve and was released to full duty on July 21.   
 
 The tracking matrix below reflects data through July 31. 
 

 Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2022 Calendar Year  

TYPE 

New  
Incidents 
(Month) 

Total  
Incidents 

(Year) 

Total Days Away 
from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 
Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 
lost  

(Year) 
OSHA 
Injuries 

0 1 1 116 1 

OSHA 
Illnesses 

0 0 0 0 0 

Other WC 
Claims 

0 0 0 0 0 

First Aid 
(non-OSHA) 

2 2 0 0 0 

 
FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 

42



% of Total MG

68.194 165.03

31.806 81.35

100.00 246.38

88.855 193.79

11.189 53.84

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1409.48 1577.57 N/A N/A

2190.20 1984.97 N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

(2) Microturbine system off-line due to the gas compressor malfunction.

(3) MF/RO PG&E statement not available at this time

1984.84 1939.79

 Reclamation Total                                

41,485.07$   

2022

24,375.27$                             

1682.65

N/A

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1681.53

1887.92

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.177

0.213

755.77

9.09 BG (27.90 K acre-ft.)

1.209

506.23

594.45

0.000

May'22

249.54

165.14

0.000

351.16 MG (1077.72 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.097

0.919

Jun'22

0.389

N/A

0.238$           

52,900.64

37,946.97$   39,573.94$   

22,586.54$                            

19,375.78$   

22,997.64$                            

21,993.08$   

MF/RO (3)

193.79MG (594.45acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-22)                 

22,109.29$   

10,568.58$                            

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h (2)

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

July 2022

32.026

0.130

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

0

Apr'22

2021

Accumulated Totals

32,605.29$                            

N/A

120,951.00

92,222.48

32,102.74$                            

May'22

12,359.21$   

18,367.65$                            

15,648.90$                            

1,225,671.00

34,016.55$                            

10,018.75$                            

0

Apr'22

0

2 QTR

16,106.49$                            

Jun'22Jul '22 kW-h 

39,104.13$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.746 0.820

2022 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

11.464

36.043

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

4.033

CAWD Total          

25,587.76$   

0.351

Jul'22

0.000

0.79324.579

Monthly Totals

1.163

0.370

0.115

1.033

Jul'22 kWh

0.228$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2022)                      

173,851.64

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.227$           

CAWD Total

CAWD 1453.87

21,534.16$                            

12,078.74$   

Reclamation

1327.64 1298.73

Reclaim Total

27,495.20$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

43



Month

Aug 21

Sep 21

Oct 21

Nov 21

Dec 21

Jan 22

Feb 22

Mar 22

Apr 22

May 22

Jun 22

Jul 22

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22

Total Inflow
PBCSD Influent Flow, mg CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

44



% of Total MG

67.195 140.45

32.805 69.89

100.00 210.34

89.017 161.76

12.068 49.80

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1409.48 1577.57 N/A N/A

2190.20 1984.97 N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

(2) Microturbine system off-line due to the gas compressor malfunction.

CAWD 1453.87

22,586.54$                            

12,359.21$   

Reclamation

1327.64 1298.73

Reclaim Total

25,587.76$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.239$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2022)                      

158,716.52

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.239$           

CAWD Total

Jun'22

0.000

0.71922.656

Monthly Totals

1.088

0.369

0.113

1.000

Jun'22 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

11.061

33.717

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

4.069

CAWD Total          

21,534.16$   

0.338

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.730 0.737

2022 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

0

Mar'22

24,427

2 QTR

15,648.90$                            

May'22Jun '22 kW-h 

34,016.55$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Apr'22

10,568.58$   

19,014.22$                            

16,666.66$                            

1,225,671.00

35,680.88$                            

9,692.95$                              

0

Mar'22

2021

Accumulated Totals

27,228.40$                            

89,377.00

106,941.00

90,654.56

32,605.29$                            

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

June 2022

30.014

0.136

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

MF/RO 

161.76MG (496.21acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-22)                 

22,997.64$   

10,018.75$                            

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h (2)

22,109.29$   

0.214$           

51,775.52

32,102.74$   37,946.97$   

17,535.45$                            

16,106.49$   

0.247$           18,367.65$                            

19,375.78$   

Apr'22

214.37

152.77

0.000

351.94 MG (1080.09 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.068

0.739

May'22

0.439

1.150

0.329

645.21

9.06 BG (27.80 K acre-ft.)

1.176

430.83

496.21

0.000

56,209.67$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1681.53

1887.92

1 QTR 3 QTR

1984.84 1939.79

 Reclamation Total                                

180,031.56 41,485.07$   39,104.13$   

2022

23,222.37$                             

1682.65

45



Month

Jul 21

Aug 21

Sep 21

Oct 21

Nov 21

Dec 21

Jan 22

Feb 22

Mar 22

Apr 22

May 22

Jun 22

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22

Total Inflow
PBCSD Influent Flow, mg CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

46



% of Total MG

65.746 117.80

34.254 58.83

100.00 176.62

88.778 131.75

13.280 45.74

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1409.48 N/A N/A N/A

2190.20 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

(2) Microturbine system off-line due to the gas compressor malfunction.

1984.84 1939.79

 Reclamation Total                                

187,788.68 39,104.13$   34,016.55$   

2022

19,567.36$                             

1682.65

51,639.51$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1681.53

1887.92

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.168

0.400

541.78

9.03 BG (27.71 K acre-ft.)

1.254

361.33

404.14

0.000

Mar'22

180.44

140.29

0.000

353.24 MG (1084.10 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.069

0.466

Apr'22

0.423

22,997.64$   

0.194$           

55,117.36

32,605.29$   32,102.74$   

15,984.77$                            

15,648.90$   

0.220$           19,014.22$                            

16,106.49$   

MF/RO 

131.75MG (404.14acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-22)                 

18,367.65$   

9,692.95$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h (2)

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

May 2022

31.153

0.150

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

24,427

Feb'22

2021

Accumulated Totals

22,342.43$                            

104,593.00

113,931.00

83,195.68

27,228.40$                            

Mar'22

10,018.75$   

19,657.48$                            

14,522.02$                            

1,225,671.00

34,179.50$                            

6,357.66$                              

0

Feb'22

22,570

2 QTR

16,666.66$                            

Apr'22May '22 kW-h 

35,680.88$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.701 0.831

2022 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

12.020

35.091

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

4.660

CAWD Total          

22,586.54$   

0.368

May'22

0.000

0.74423.071

Monthly Totals

1.132

0.388

0.107

1.005

May'22 kWh

0.192$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2022)                      

169,048.36

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.189$           

CAWD Total

CAWD 1453.87

17,535.45$                            

10,568.58$   

Reclamation

1327.64 1298.73

Reclaim Total

21,534.16$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

47



Month

Jun 21

Jul 21

Aug 21

Sep 21

Oct 21

Nov 21

Dec 21

Jan 22

Feb 22

Mar 22

Apr 22

May 22

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22

Total Inflow
PBCSD Influent Flow, mg CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

48



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From: Ray De Ocampo - Laboratory/Environmental  

Compliance Supervisor 
 
Date:             August 25, 2022 
 
Subject: Monthly Report – July 2022 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report - Informational only; No action required. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
LABORATORY REPORT 

• Biobot Analytics continues to provide COVID-19 analysis for Carmel Area 
Wastewater District (CAWD) composite samples of the Influent Pump Station. 
Biobot samples are available upon request and can also be viewed on the CAWD 
website: Click the link to access Biobot Postings:  

 
* Effective virus concentration value is derived by adjusting the raw virus concentration to account for dilution & other 
factors (copies per liter of sewage) 

 
• On July 14, 2022, the annual proficiency testing Proficiency Testing (PT) study 

Discharge Monitoring Report-Quality Assurance (DMR-QA) samples has been 
complete and submitted to RTC Millipore Sigma Aldrich to fulfill the California 
Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program requirements.  
 
 

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

1/
4/

2…
1/

11
/…

1/
18

/…
1/

25
/…

2/
1/

2…
2/

8/
2…

2/
17

/…
2/

22
/…

3/
1/

2…
3/

8/
2…

3/
15

/…
3/

22
/…

3/
29

/…
4/

5/
2…

4/
12

/…
4/

19
/…

4/
26

/…
5/

3/
2…

5/
10

/…
5/

17
/…

5/
24

/…
5/

31
/…

6/
7/

2…
6/

14
/…

6/
21

/…
6/

28
/…

7/
5/

2…
7/

12
/…

7/
19

/…
7/

26
/…

Ax
is 

Ti
tle

Axis Title

Effective SARS-CoV-2  Virus concentration* (copies per liter of sewage)

 

 
 

49



 
The performance testing sample results are reviewed by RTC Millipore Sigma 
Aldrich staff as “acceptable or not acceptable” the performance report will be 
provided to CAWD staff as soon as it available. 
 

• On July 19-20, 2022, Carmel Area Wastewater District’s (CAWD’s) laboratory was 
assessed by Mei Beth Shepherd with International Accreditation Service (IAS). The 
audit was part of the Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) as a 
requirement to renew CAWD’s ELAP certificate. The assessment included how 
CAWD’s laboratory collects, analyzes, reporting results, and includes quality control 
and quality assurance procedures. The final report will include any deficiencies 
findings that the laboratory will need to correct and submit to ELAP, along with the 
application packet and fee. The CAWD’s laboratory staff has started to make 
corrective action prior to the IAS report. The laboratory permit expires on December 
27, 2022, and CAWD has 90 days to submit the application packet before expiration 
date. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
• On July 27, 2022, Mr. De Ocampo with collections staff members videoed Grasings 

and Casanova restaurants sewer clean out lines to determine if the grease traps are 
retaining the fats, oils, and grease (FOG). The Six Sigma Task Force group will 
evaluate the videos to determine the efficiency of the systems and determine next 
steps. There are three remaining restaurants sewer cleanouts are to be videoed 
during the month of August by CAWD’s Environmental Compliance staff.  
 

• The contract for Stormwater Compliance Inspections FY 2021-2022 between CAWD 
and the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea ended on June 30,2022. The City of Carmel staff 
will be starting to do their own stormwater inspections. Carmel city staff will work 
with CAWD’s Environmental Compliance staff to communicate the City’s sewer 
related findings.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

50



 
 
 

 
Restaurant Inspections 

 
Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspections 

Grocery 
Store/Delicatessen 

 
Compliant 

Reason for Non-
Compliance 

 
Comments 

NA    
 

Compliance Register 
% Compliance Maintenance Mechanical 

May 2022 77.8 100 
June 2022 100 100 
July 2022 NA NA 

 

 
Restaurant 

 
Compliant 

Reason for Non-
Compliance 

 
Comments 

Grasings   Task Force reviewing 
videos 

Casanova   Task Force reviewing 
videos 

51



Project 
Number

GL Task Name Manager Start Finish Current FY 
Budget

Cumulative 
Budget

Status

Projects Implementation Plan Schedule 3/1/18 7/1/40 $0 $0

Treatment Plant Capital Projects 4/30/18 2/29/28 $0 $0

18-01 1620.000 Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding 
Tank Replacement Project

Treanor 4/30/18 7/25/23 $4,820,750 $9,137,431 In Construction

18-28 1626.000 Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation Treanor 7/1/19 6/30/26 $75,000 $130,020 Planning Stakeholder
Meeting

19-21 1993.000 Carmel River FREE Mitigation Treanor 6/1/20 11/29/24 $0 $0 Pending Funding

19-19 1634.000 Aeration Basin Improvements Waggoner 7/1/20 6/30/22 $0 $17,332 On Hold

19-18 1593.000 Perimeter Fencing Treanor 7/1/22 6/29/23 $275,000 $275,000 Design Phase

22-03 1639.000 WWTP Gas and Water Main 
Replacement

Treanor 5/2/22 6/28/24 $100,000 $300,000 In Study Phase

22-06 Vactor Receiving Station Treanor 7/1/22 8/29/24 $104,950 $354,950 Design Phase

22-04 5500.006 CAWD Bridge and Trail Project Treanor 3/1/21 2/29/28 $0 $550 Funding Strategy

Reclamation Capital Projects 1/1/19 6/30/23 $0 $580,000

18-26 14777 Sulfuric Acid and Citric Acid Storage and
Feed Systems

Treanor 1/1/19 10/31/22 $334,000 $455,923 In Construction

21-09 14776 SCADA Migration Foley 11/1/21 10/31/22 $80,000 $179,075 In Progress 90%

21-10 Fiber Wrap PVC Pipe Foley 4/1/22 6/30/22 $25,000 $25,000 Pending

22-05 Reclamation 15-Year Asset 
Management Assessment

Treanor 7/1/21 6/30/23 $300,000 $300,000 Scoping Work With a
Consultant Team

Collections Capital Projects 4/16/18 7/1/40 $0 $8,139,000

19-03 1586.000 Carmel Meadows Sewer Replacement Lather 8/1/19 1/19/23 $2,000,000 $2,471,949 In Design / Permitting

20-07 1636.000 Bay/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation Lather 12/31/20 6/30/23 $650,000 $680,892 In Design

20-08 1635.000 Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean to Bay Lather 2/5/21 6/30/23 $3,500,000 $3,731,786 In Design / CEQA

21-05 1637.000 Pescadero Creek Area Pipe Relocation Lather 7/1/21 6/30/23 $100,000 $1,689,236 In Design

20-06 Collections 15-Year CIP Lather 7/1/20 7/1/40 $0 $62,899,430 Work In Progress

Collections Non-Capital Projects 7/3/18 2/27/25 $0 $0

20-05 River Watch Agreement Lather 2/21/20 2/21/24 $0 $0 Work In Progress

21-06 6140.005 Manhole Rehabilitation Lather 7/1/22 6/29/23 $300,000 $362,300 In Construction

Assessment Districts/Annexations Lather 7/3/18 2/27/25 $0 $105,000

19-09 5500.005 2020 Sphere of Influence Amendment and 
Annexation Proposal 

Lather 3/15/19 3/1/22 $0 $73,675 In process of obtaining CDP
Ammendment for

annexations in coastal zone
18-21 1631.000/

2505.000
Corona Road Assessment District Lather 8/2/18 12/2/22 $0 $0 In Design / CEQA

19-08 1632.000 Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline and Pump 
Station

Lather 7/3/18 6/30/22 $0 $0 Re-Design by Property
Owner in Progress

18-29 9095.000 September Ranch Subdivision Lather 9/1/22 8/30/24 $0 $0 Development Pending

Rancho Canada Subdivision Lather 3/1/23 2/27/25 $0 $0 In Design by Property Owner

Other Non-Capital Projects 3/1/18 2/29/40 $0 $0

Workforce Now Foley 3/1/18 3/1/18 $0 $0 Implementation

ding Tank Replacement Project

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Carmel River FREE Mitigation

on Basin Improvements

Perimeter Fencing

WWTP Gas and Water Main Replacement

Vactor Receiving Station

CAWD Bridge and Tra

Storage and Feed Systems

SCADA Migration

Fiber Wrap PVC Pipe

eclamation 15-Year Asset Management Assessment

ows Sewer Replacement

Bay/Scenic Pump Station RehabilitationBay/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation

Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean to Bay

Pescadero Creek Area Pipe Relocation

Collections 15-Year CIPCollections 15-Year CIP

River Watch AgreementRiver Watch Agreement

Manhole Rehabilitation

t and Annexation Proposal 

ment District

d Pump Stationd Pump Station

September Ranch SubdivisionSeptember Ranch Subdivision

Rancho Canada SubdivisionRancho Canada Subdivision

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2021 2022 2023 2024

52



Project 
Number

GL Task Name Manager Start Finish Current FY 
Budget

Cumulative 
Budget

Status

Real Property Investigation Buikema 3/1/18 3/1/18 $75,000 $75,000 Evaluation in Progress

Cyber Security Foley 3/1/18 3/1/18 $17,000 $17,000 Ongoing

Lean Six Sigma Buikema 3/1/18 3/1/18 $0 $0 Green Belt Level Training and
Certification

22-01 5500.006 Long Term SLR Planning Buikema /
Treanor

5/3/21 2/29/40 $260,000 $1,400,000 In Progress Long Term SLR Planning

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2021 2022 2023 2024

53



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treatment Plant Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

54



 
Photo: New Sludge Tank Under Construction 

  
Project Number: 18-01 
Project Name: Wastewater Treatment Plant 

(WWTP) – Elec/Mech Rehab & 
Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: In Construction 
Project 
Description: 

This project is a multi-area project 
at the WWTP aimed at mitigating 
risk of failure in the Influent Pump 
Station, Headworks, 3W/Chlorine 
Analyzer Building, Effluent Building 
and Sludge Storage Tank. Most of 
the work involves replacing aged 
electrical and mechanical 
equipment in existing buildings. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$9,137,431 
Cumulative Spent: 
$5,002,943 

FY Budget: 
$4,820,750 

FY Spent: 
$340,920 

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 2.7% of project cost.  

Other Entities: Pebble Beach Community Services 
District, CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation 
Project 

Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: Electrical Cutover Coordination; 

Steel tank vs concrete design to 
code 

Schedule: • Construction anticipated for 
FY21/22 into FY22/23 

Consultants: Design: Kennedy/Jenks Consultants  
Construction Management: Currie 
Engineers 

Contractor: Clark Bros. Inc. 
 

 

 

Photo: Eucalyptus trees on South Side of Treatment Plant 
  
Project Number: 18-28 
Project Name: Perimeter Tree Plan and 

Implementation 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Planning Stakeholder Meeting 
Project 
Description: 

Planning and landscaping around 
the treatment plant. This will 
include looking into possibly 
replacing the non-native eucalyptus 
trees around the perimeter of the 
treatment plant with native tree 
species. The project will start with a 
study and a plan to determine 
costs, sequencing schedule, and 
visual impacts. The Eucalyptus trees 
around the plant have ongoing 
maintenance costs, which may be 
offset in the long term with a 
different type of tree screening. 
The purpose is to improve security 
around plant perimeter.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$130,020 
Cumulative Spent: 
$5,020                 

FY Budget: 
$75,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation: N/A 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Currently unknown (In Study Phase) 

Challenges: Time it will take for new trees to 
grow up that will fully screen 
treatment plant from view 

Schedule: • Study moved to 2022; 
anticipate completion 06-30-26 

Consultants: Scott Hall Landscape Design 

Contractor: TBD 
 

  

55



 

 

Photo: Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and 
Environmental Enhancement (CRFREE) 

Project Number: 19-21 
Project Name: Carmel River Floodplain 

Restoration & Environmental 
Enhancement (CRFREE) Mitigation  

Project Location: Carmel River Lagoon 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Pending Funding 
Project 
Description: 

The CRFREE Project intends to 
create a new river channel in the 
Carmel River lagoon floodplain, 
which will significantly impact 
existing wastewater pipelines that 
cross the lagoon. To fully mitigate 
impacts from CRFREE the pipelines, 
which are currently crossing over a 
portion of the lagoon, are proposed 
to be installed underground using 
Horizontal Directional Drilling 
construction methods.   

Department: Engineering 
Financial: Coastal 

Conservancy Grant 
Budget: 
$750,000 

Cumulative Spent: 
$618,569 
FY Spent: 
$0 

** Project is being funded by CRFREE initiated grants 

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: Monterey County 
Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Commission, CA Fish and 
Wildlife, Army Corp of Engineers, 
Reginal Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB) 

Challenges: Construction near environmentally 
sensitive habitat and obtaining new 
easement from State Parks 

Schedule: • Construction anticipated in 
2024 

Consultants: Design: Kennedy Jenks and Staheli 
Trenchless 
CEQA: Johnson Marigot 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 
Photo: Existing air diffuser system 

  
Project Number: 19-19 
Project Name: WWTP – Aeration Basin 

Improvements 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Waggoner 

Status: On Hold 
Project Description: The Aeration Basins 4A & 4B need 

to have additional diffusers 
installed to ensure the proper air 
(oxygen) transfer into the 
wastewater to support the 
aerobic microorganisms in the 
basins.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$17,332 
Cumulative Spent: 
$17,332  

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: N/A 

Challenges: Weather conditions and 
Scheduling 

Schedule: • Design is complete 
• Materials ordered and 

received  
• Construction anticipated for 

2022 
Consultants: N/A 

Contractor: N/A 
  

56



 
Photo: Existing Dilapidated Fence 

  
Project Number: 19-18 
Project Name: Perimeter Fencing 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Design Phase 
Project Description: Install a new fence around the 

perimeter of the WWTP. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$275,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0  

FY Budget: 
$275,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND), Coastal 
Developmental Permit (CDP) 
Notification 

Challenges: Environmental Mitigations 

Schedule: • Design in FY22-23 
• Construction in FY23-24 

Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 
Photo: Gas Meter on North Side of River 

  
Project Number: 22-03 
Project Name: WWTP Gas and Water Main 

Replacement 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: In Study Phase 
Project Description: The WWTP natural gas and water 

utility service exists on the 
opposite side of the Carmel River 
from the WWTP. CAWD owns the 
piping under the river for these 
utilities. The water line and gas 
line are PVC and identified as 
having a high risk of failure. The 
gas line is needed for plant 
operations to provide 
supplementary heating to the 
digesters for thermophilic 
digestion. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$300,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$24,806 

FY Budget: 
$100,000 

FY Spent: 
$24,806 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: Cost Share w/ Collections @ 5.5% 

Permits Required: TBD 

Challenges: Underground work in riparian 
area 

Schedule: • Currently undergoing 
alternatives analysis study 

• Design in FY22-23 
• Construction in FY23-24 

Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: N/A 
  

57



 

 
Photo: Conceptual Rendering of Public Use and Bridge 

  
Project Number: 22-04 
Project Name: CAWD Bridge and Trail Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Funding Strategy 
Project Description: Construct a new bridge at the 

location of the existing CAWD 
bridge over the Carmel River. 
Bridge would be open for public 
use and would allow for new 
walking trails to connect the City 
of Carmel-by-the-Sea (Mission 
Trail) to the Regional Parks (Palo 
Corona). 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$550 
Cumulative Spent: 
$550  

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

**No budget. Funding potential via Carmel River 
Settlement grants. 
Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: State Parks, Catholic Diocese, City 
of Carmel-by-the-Sea, Regional 
Parks District 

Permits Required: TBD 

Challenges: Underground work in riparian 
area 

Schedule: Pending an application for grant 
funding. 

Consultants: TBD 

Contractor: TBD 

 

 
Photo: CAWD Vactor Truck 

  
Project Number: 22-06 
Project Name: Vactor Receiving Station 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Design Phase 
Project Description: Construct a new Vactor 

Receiving Station for Collections 
Dept disposal of waste collected 
in the vactor truck.  

Department: Treatment 

Financial: Cumulative 
Budget: 
$354,950 

Cumulative Spent: 
$0  

FY Budget: 
$104,950 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: Coastal Developmental Permit 
(CDP) Notification 

Challenges: Design for ultimate user 
satisfaction. 

Schedule: Construction in FY23/24 

Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: TBD 

 

 

58



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reclamation Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

59



 
Photo: Existing totes used for Sulfuric Acid storage and 

Feed  
  
Project Number: 18-26 
Project Name: Sulfuric Acid & Citric Acid Storage 

& Feed Systems Project 
Project Location: Reclamation – Microfiltration 

(MF)/Reverse Osmosis (RO) 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: In Construction 
Project 
Description: 

Code compliance upgrades for 
existing acid chemical storage and 
feed system used by Reclamation 
for enhancing RO recovery. Project 
includes code compliant secondary 
containment and separation of 
dissimilar chemicals. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$455,923 
Cumulative Spent: 
$125,468 

FY Budget: 
$334,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation 
Share: 

100%  

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: Hazardous Chemical Safety 
Schedule: Construction 2021/2022 
Consultants: Trussell Technologies, Inc 
Contractor: Monterey Peninsula Engineering 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Photo: Microfiltration SCADA Overview 

  
Project Number: 21-09 
Project Name: Reclamation Supervisory 

Control and Data Acquisition 
(SCADA) Migration Project 

Project Location: Reclamation Plant 
Project Manager: Foley 
Status: In Progress 90% 
Project Description: Migration of reclamation 

legacy from RSView32 SCADA 
screens, alarms and trending 
to Ignition SCADA platform 
utilized by the treatment 
plant and collections pump 
stations. The legacy system 
software is no longer 
supported and poses a 
cybersecurity risk. It has been 
in service for 14+ years and 
the hardware is past its 
useful life. The new system 
will be more secure and 
installed on modern reliable 
hardware.  

Department: Reclamation 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$179,075 
Cumulative Spent: 
$152,428 

FY Budget: 
$80,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: 100%  
Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: None 
Challenges: Structure of old Programming 
Schedule: Work started in December 

2021 
Consultants: Frisch Engineering 

 

60



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Collections Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

 

61



 
Photo: View gravity pipe in Carmel easement  

  
Project Number: 19-03 
Project Name: Carmel Meadows Sewer 

Replacement  
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design / Permitting 
Project 
Description: 

The project will replace 1,300 feet 
of Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP) on an 
aerial span and eight manholes by 
constructing a small pump station 
at the end of Mariposa Drive. This 
project is located on an easement 
parallel to Ribera Road and was 
originally installed in the early 
1960's. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$2,471,949 
Cumulative Spent: 
$474,359  

FY Budget: 
$2,000,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Permits Required: Coastal Permit and Environmental 
Review 

Challenges: Redirecting the sewer to the pump 
station without requiring booster 
pumps for individual houses. 

Schedule: Design and Environmental Review 
completed by 6/28/22. 
Construction to begin FY22/23. 

Consultants: SRT Consultants, WRA         
Environmental 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  Photo: Looking at Pump Station Exterior 
  
Project Number: 20-07 
Project Name: Bay/Scenic Pump Station 

Rehabilitation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design 
Project Description: Remodel the interior of the 

pump station and update the 
SCADA panel to minimize areas 
prone to flooding. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$680,892 
Cumulative Spent: 
$30,892 

FY Budget: 
$650,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 

Commission 
Permits Required: Exemptions from CEQA & 

Coastal Commission 
Challenges: Traffic Control  
Schedule: Design 2021, Construct 2022, 

completed by 06-23 
Consultants: SRT 

Contractor: Pending 

  

62



 

Photo: Pipe Bursting Limits on Scenic 
  
Project Number: 20-08 
Project Name: Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - 

Ocean to Bay 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design / CEQA 
Project Description: Replace approximately 

9,525 linear feet of 
existing 6-inch clay pipe 
with a new 8-inch High-
Density Polyethylene 
(HDPE) and includes 
manhole rehabilitation. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$3,731,786 
Cumulative Spent: 
$231,786 

FY Budget: 
$3,500,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, 

Coastal 
Commission 

Permits Required:  CEQA & Coastal 
Commission permit 
required. 

Challenges: Traffic control & poorly 
mapped underground 
utilities. Cultural 
Resources at southern 
end of project. 

Schedule: Design 2021-2022, 
Construct 2023, 
Completed 06-23 

Consultants: MNS, Rincon 

Contractor: Pending 

 

 

Photo: Sewer Line at Pescadero Creek 
  
Project Number: 21-05 
Project Name: Pescadero Creek Area Pipe 

Relocation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design 
Project Description: Relocate damaged pipe from 

creek slope to roadway 
Department: Collections 
Financial: 
O&M 

Cumulative Budget: 
$1,689,236 

Cumulative Spent: 
$89,236 

FY Budget: 
$100,000  

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Environmental Review 

Challenges: Narrow road, depth of 
manhole, houses to be 
placed on individual pumps 

Schedule: Start design, public outreach, 
& Environmental in Winter 
2022/23. 

Consultants: MNS, Denise Duffy 

Contractor: TBD 

  

63



 

Photo: LT Capital Schedule 
  
Project Number: 20-06 
Project Name: Collections 15 -Year CIP 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Utilize updated sewer line 
inspection information and flow 
modeling to develop a 20-year 
Construction Improvement Plan  

Department: Collections 
Projection of 
Total Capital 
Costs-15-Yr 
$63M 

Construction 
Costs: $63M 

Administration 
Costs: $10M (20% 
engineering, legal, 
admin.) 

Financial: Cumulative 
15YR Budget: 
EST $63M 

Cumulative Spent: 
 
N/A 

FY Budget: 
N/A 

FY Spent: 
N/A 

Reclamation 
Share: 

 
0% 

Other Entities: River Watch-see project #20-05 
Permits Required: none 
Challenges: Need all pipeline CCTV results to be 

completed to develop plan.  
Schedule: 2020 - 2040 
Consultants: West Yost 

Contractor: N/A 

 

 

 

 

64



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Collections Non-Capital Project Summaries 

 

65



 

Photo: River Watch logo 
  
Project Number: 20-05 
Project Name: River Watch Agreement 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Work with Collections to provide 
data that is needed to satisfy the 
milestones in the agreement with 
River Watch. As of May 2022, staff 
has completed all of the 1,478 
District manholes for the FY.  

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

N/A 
Cumulative Spent: 
N/A 

FY Budget: 
N/A 

FY Spent: 
N/A 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: River Watch 
Permits 
Required: 

none 

Challenges: Closed caption television (CCTV) 
scheduling deadlines. The Board 
agreed to increase staffing by one 
full time equivalent (FTE) to assist in 
meeting the required schedule. 
Received 1 yr. extension from River 
Watch due to COVID-19. 

Schedule: Due date June 2023 
Consultants:  

Contractor: N/A 

 

 

 

Photo: Manhole Inspection Map 
  
Project Number: 21-06 
Project Name: Manhole Rehabilitation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Construction 
Project Description: Line Manholes with a 

solvent-free rigid 
polyurethane material that 
seals surface and provides 
structural integrity & to 
prevent inflow/infiltration 

Department: Collections 
Financial: 
O&M 

Cumulative Budget: 
$362,300 

Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$362,300 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: none 

Challenges: Traffic control  
Schedule: Complete by 06-23 
Consultants: none 

Contractor: TBD 

 

 

66



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment Districts/Annexations 

 

67



 
Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation  

  
Project Number: 19-09 
Project Name: 2021 Sphere of Influence (SOI) 

Amendment & Annexation 
Proposal 

Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In process of obtaining Coastal 

Development Permit Amendment 
for annexations in Coastal Zone 

Project 
Description: 

The project will provide access for 
homes and businesses currently on 
septic systems and add 350 new 
connections to the District at build-
out.  

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$73,675 
Cumulative Spent: 
$73,675 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

** No Budget included for Annexation b/c costs will be 
recouped through annexation fees. 
Permits 
Required: 

Environmental Review, Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO) 
Annexation Approval 

Challenges:  

Schedule:  Waiting for State Board of 
Equalization 

Consultant: Denise Duffy & Associates 
 

 
Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation 

  
Project Number: 18-21 

Project Name: Corona Road Sewer Assessment 
District 

Project Location: Collection System 

Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In process of completing an 

Assessment Engineer’s report, Coastal 
Permit application and environmental 
documents. 

Project 
Description: 

The project will provide sewer facilities 
to the Corona Road neighborhood and 
parcels on the west side of Highway 1, 
across from Corona Road. #18-21 
Corona Road (Deferred Revenue**) 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$0 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

** No Budget included for project because the initial costs 
were funded by Corona Road residents. 

Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Permit, CalTrans Encroachment 
permit, Environmental Review 

Challenges: Assessment District process/approval 
and obtaining easements for pump 
station. Funds from homeowners in 
the amount of $67K have been 
received by CAWD. 

Schedule: Complete studies July/August 2022, 
Assessment District proceeding 
September 

Consultant: Denise Duffy & Associates and 
Monterey Bay Engineers 

  

68



 

Photo: Entrance to Carmel Valley Manor 
  
Project Number: 19-08 
Project Name: Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline and 

Pump Station 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Re-Design by Property Owner in 

Progress             
Project 
Description: 

Sewer extension project to be 
completed by the owners of Carmel 
Valley Manor to connect to CAWD’s 
sewer system. Riley Ranch, #19-08 
Carmel Valley Manor (Deferred 
Revenue) 

Department: Collections 
Financial: this is an 
unbudgeted item- 
under repayment 
agreement (no 
funds received) 

Cumulative 
Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative  
Spent: 
$180 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$180 

Other Entities: The prospect of a pipeline has given 
rise to a plethora of potential 
additional connections 

Permits Required: County Encroachment Permit, 
Environmental Review completed.  

Challenges: Funding, Repayment Agreement, 
easement agreements LAFCO 
annexation 

Schedule: Approved without protest at 
3/22/21 LAFCO hearing. 

Consultants: MNS and Rincon are working for 
Carmel Valley Manor to permit and 
design the project. 

Contractor: N/A 

 

69



 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Non-Capital Project Summaries 

 

 

70



 

            ADP Workforce Now 

Photo: ADP Clip Art 
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Workforce Now 
Project Location: All Supervisor Locations 

Project Manager: Foley 
Status: Implementation 
Project 
Description: 

Implementation of a 
comprehensive Human Resource 
(HR) software database for all 
supervisors and employees to 
utilize. Modules provide employee 
development tracking, benefits 
administration, custom 
performance review templates, and 
employee goal management. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$0 
Cumulative Spent: 
$2,520 (annual fee) 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$2,520 (annual fee) 

Challenges: Technical issues need to be 
resolved & employee training  

Schedule: Anticipate implementation in the 
Fall 2022 – scouting vendors 

Consultants: ADP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Photo: Real Estate Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Real Property Investigation 
Project Location: Carmel Valley 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema 
Status: Evaluation in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

An investigation of a possible new 
treatment facility site in the mouth 
of the Carmel Valley, which is in 
response to the Coastal Commission 
requirement to move facilities 
within 30 years. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$75,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$75,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Permits Required: None – at this time 

Challenges: Limited land possibilities, regulatory 
hurdles, and zoning 

Schedule: 24 months 
Consultants: Mahoney & Associates 

 

  

71

https://youtu.be/0_dJBfrta9g


 
Photo: Cyber Security Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Cyber Security 
Project Location: District-wide 
Project Manager: Chris Foley 
Status: Ongoing 
Project Description: Internal Cyber Security 

Incident Response Team 
(CSIRT) formed, and they are 
working on a response plan & 
training. The upgrades to 
email filtering system have 
been completed. Stricter 
geofencing policies have been 
put in place, and a cold backup 
system that is sandboxed from 
the network was 
installed March 2022.  

Department: All 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$17,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$17,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Challenges: Ongoing training & the need 
for continual upgrades as skills 
of hackers grow. 

Schedule: Continually updating 
Consultant: Exceedio 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Photo: Six Sigma Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Lean Six Sigma 

Project Location: Management staff 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema 
Status: Green Belt Level Training & 

Certification 
Project 
Description: 

Currently all managers have been 
assigned the task of earning a 
Green Belt certification.  One staff 
member has completed the  
Black Belt training. One more staff 
member will be moving on to the 
Black Belt self-study course. Also, 
will investigate an in-person trainer 
for the implementation of a 
specific agreed upon project. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$0 
Cumulative Spent: 
$2,000 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Permits Required: None 
Challenges: Implementation phase 
Schedule: Ongoing 
Consultants: Self-study online 
Trainer: To be determined 

 

  

72



 

Photo: California coastline  
  
Project Number: 22-01 
Project Name: Long-Term Sea Level Rise Planning 

Project Location: Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema/Patrick Treanor 
Status: In Progress 
Project 
Description: 

As conditions of Coastal Permit #3-
82-199-A8 - the District submitted 
its Long-Term Coastal Hazards Plan 
on 03-03-22.  Bringing a 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Alternatives Planning Assistance 
consultant services contract to the 
Board in May 2022.   

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$1,400,00 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$260,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Permits Required: In response to California Coastal 
Commission 

Challenges: Establishing focus on long term 
objectives and committing to follow 
through items. 

Schedule: WWTP Relocation Alternatives on 
May 2022 agenda 

Consultants: Greeley & Hansen 

 

 

 

 

73



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From: Ed Waggoner, Operations Superintendent                                             
 
Date:  August 25, 2022 
 
Subject: Monthly Operations Report – July 2022 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 

Plant Operation 
Treatment Plant: 

• The treatment plant operations staff has continued finishing projects and 
concentrating on Preventative Maintenance Work Orders during the month of 
July. This included the implementation of the Operations Flood Preparation 
Standard Operating Procedures from the Plant Engineer. 

• (Project #18-05) Programmable Logic Controller/Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (PLC/SCADA). Operations staff has been meeting and working 
with Maintenance and Frisch Engineering on the upgrades and programming 
of the PLC/SCADA System.  

• Operations Superintendent working with Human Resources Consultant on 
filling the Operator I-II position vacated by Jason Veile in May. In person 
interviews for the Operator I-II occurred on July 19th with a tentative 
employment offer being made to Rommel Lopez upon completing 
preemployment process. 

 
Reclamation: 

• Staff continued preventative maintenance work on pumps, motors, and any 
equipment that needs maintenance for the Microfiltration and Reverse Osmosis 
Systems.  

• Staff completed Clean-in-Place (CIP) cleans on Microfiltration (MF) Cells 1, 2 
and 3. All cells cleaned successfully with Trans Membrane Pressures (TMPs) 
pressures ranging between 1.8 to 5.5 pounds per square inch (psi).  

 
 
 

 

 
 

74



Training: 
• Staff continues to complete online training at the treatment facility from Target 

Solutions as Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) implements its new 
safety policies for the Exposure Control Plan updates for the COVID-19 virus. 

• Staff continues to participate in scheduled tailgate safety meetings in the 
digester building conference room.  
 

Capital Improvement:  
• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor, on Project #18-01, 

the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower 
Building, Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 
1, Digester No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering Building. 

 
Meetings Attended 

• On July 14, attended an in-person Oversite Committee meeting with Carmel 
Area Wastewater District and the Golf Course Superintendents at the Pebble 
Beach Community Service District Offices for the Wastewater Reclamation 
Project. 

• On July 15, 2022, The In-House Safety Committee met to review and update the 
Injury & Illness Prevention Program, with discussions on the upcoming Safety 
Culture Survey. 

• July 26, 2022, Operations Superintendent attended a Teams meeting with 
Kennedy/Jenks and Trussell Technologies on introductions of the consultant 
team with discussions of potential scope of work for Long Term Master 
Planning (15 years) for the Reclamation Treatment Facilities. 

• (Project #18-01) A Teams Meeting on the construction progress of the 
Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower 
Building, Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent Building, Digester 
No. 1, Digester No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering Building. 

  
Discharge Permit Violations 

• There were no violations of Reclamation Permit 93-72 for the month of June 
2022.  

• There were no violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the 
month of June 2022.  

 
FUNDING-N/A-Informational item only 

75



STAFF REPORT 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

Date:  August 25, 2022 

Subject: Monthly Maintenance Report – July 2022 

RECOMMENDATION  

Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 

DISCUSSION  

Maintenance Projects in Progress/Completed 

• The microturbine gas compressor startup was completed. The microturbines are 
back in service.

• (Project 21-09) Update 2: Work continues on the Reclamation Supervisory Control 
and Data Acquisition (SCADA) project with Frisch engineering. Staff has a meeting 
scheduled with H2O Innovations to discuss the programming updates so the 
migration can be completed. Staff is currently testing all the alarms and controls on 
the Ignition SCADA. Staff plans to shut down the old RSView32 SCADA system in 
early September.

• Critical corrective work orders were higher last month due in part to the SCADA 
alarm migration. As alarms were migrated issues were identified and corrected.

• Staff has procured additional spare Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs) for the 
reclamation and treatment plant. Eaton (VFD Manufacturer) discontinued the 
SVX9000 platform, which includes most of the VFDs in the secondary plant and 
reclamation. The VFDs were not scheduled to be obsolete but since Eaton has the 
VFDs built by another manufacturer it was out of their control. Staff is working with 
Beecher Engineering on a long-term plan to migrate the VFDs to another platform. 
With CAWDs robust spare inventory and assistance from Beecher Engineering there 
is time to adequately plan for replacement with minimal risk of downtime.

76



 
 
 
Upcoming Maintenance Projects 

 
 

• (Project 18-01) Update 1: Staff is working with Frisch Engineering on the 
programming for the new chlorination and effluent equipment.  
 

• Work is scheduled on the sodium hypochlorite system to change out the last of the 
factory threaded valves. The chemical resistant thread sealant fails after a few years. 
To prevent the failures, Senior Mechanic Michael Skinkle has been implementing a 
fused pipe solution that he found.  
 

• Staff is working with Avatour to implement a 3D virtual tour of the treatment plant. 
More information and a demonstration will be provided after the onboarding 
process is complete.   
 

• Staff has contracted with Tesco to provide instrumentation support and calibration 
of analyzers, flow meters, VFD configuration and general electrical control system 
onsite support. Work is scheduled to start in September and Tesco will be onsite a 
few days each month to assist staff. The goal is to identify problems with 
instruments before they occur by performing regular calibrations and verifications 
on all of our instruments. We are currently only calibrating analyzers and permit 
flow meters.  
 

Staff Development 
 

• Collections and Maintenance staff visited Monterey One Water’s Seaside pump 
station to view their rail system for removing pumps.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

77



 
 
 

Work Order Metrics 
Preventive Maintenance       
         
Total Work Orders Generated    553  
Total Work Orders Closed/Done    528  
Total Work Orders Still Open    25  
Percentage of Work Orders Completed    95.48%  
         
Corrective Maintenance        
 

          
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
   Emergency 4     
   Critical  19     
   Urgent 5     
   Routine 8     
   Projects 6     

 
 
 
 
 
FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 

78



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:  August 25, 2022 
 

Subject:          General Engineering  
   
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
This report is provided to update the Board of the Carmel Area Wastewater District 
(District) on current engineering activities during the month of July 2022. 
 
General Engineering 
 
The Principal Engineer continues to work on projects related to the 2021 Annexation, 
including Yankee Point, Carmel Valley Manor and Corona Road.  The Corona Road project 
engineer, Monterey Bay Engineers, Inc. has completed surveying the project site and the 
environmental/permitting process has begun.  The engineer is also moving forward with 
updating the draft assessment engineer’s report per the suggestions given by the bond 
counsel, Jones Hall, and has been developing easement documents for the project and 
obtaining easement agreements with 2 property owners for the pump station location and 
access.  The agreements were sent to the property owners but we have received no 
communication back.  Currently, we are reaching out to the project proponents to get the 
agreements signed. 
 
Carmel Valley Manor (CVM) is continuing to work on their project to connect to the 
District and have completed realignment of their pipeline. It is our understanding that they 
plan to start construction in September 2022.  The engineer has not received a completed 
Sewer Installation Agreement from CVM or easement agreement.   
 
The Principal Engineer has contacted the September Ranch developer, Wei Huang.  She has 
taken over for Mr. Abrahams and their attorney has provided comments to the draft Sewer 
Installation Agreement with the District and these comments/changes have been forwarded 
to CAWD’s attorneys for comment.  In addition, the Rancho Cañada Village developer was 
provided a copy of a draft Sewer Installation Agreement but the District Engineer has not 
received comments from them. 
 
 

  

79



Source Control Task Force 
The Source Control Task Force was formed in January 2022 in order to use Six Sigma 
methods to improve the effectiveness of restaurant inspections to reduce grease issues in 
our collection system.  The team consists of subject matter experts; Principal Engineer- 
Rachel Lather, Plant Engineer-Patrick Treanor, Collections Superintendent-Daryl Lauer, 
Plant Superintendent-Ed Waggoner , and Source Control Supervisor-Ray De Ocampo.     
 
The goal of this task force is to reduce grease in our collections system by improving 
inspections using video technology, increased outreach to restaurants, and compliance 
follow up.  The success measures include being able to reduce the flushing schedule, to 
focus restaurant inspections based on data collected, and to reduce sanitary sewer 
overflows due to grease. 
 
The task force is led by the Principal Engineer, Rachel Lather and has met three times to 
date.  Each subject matter expert has provided data to Mr. Treanor to perform an analysis 
of the trends.  At this time, we have completed the “Define, Measure, Analyze” steps and 
have determined that more information is needed prior to proceeding to the 
“Improvement” step of the Six Sigma process.    The following photo of a restaurant’s 
lateral was found on the pipeline video inspection and supports the need to improve 
inspections. 

 
Principal Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor gathered the data from each member of the task 
force and completed a study of the sources of grease in the District collection system from 
pipeline inspections and mapping of restaurants in the collection system. The study process 
went through the following steps: 
 
Step 1 - CCTV inspections grease data was collected for all pipeline segments in the District 
over the last 5 years.  

80



Step 2 - A list of all downstream pipe segments for each individual restaurant in the District 
was developed.  
Step 3 - To analyze which restaurants are discharging grease, data for each line segment 
(from Step 1) was totalized for all the downstream line segments associated with each 
individual restaurant (from Step 2). This provided a unique “grease score” for each 
restaurant. 
Step 4 - The restaurants with a “grease score” greater than 1 standard deviation above the 
mean were identified for further investigation. Of the approximately 100 restaurants in the 
District, 30 were determined to be likely sources of excessive grease observed in the 
pipelines (i.e. these 30 restaurants had a grease score of greater than one standard deviation 
above the mean). These restaurants were called “potential problem restaurants.”  
 

 
 
Step 5 -  Grease trap size for each restaurant was also compared to the grease score (from 
Step 3) for each restaurant. The analysis of grease trap size and downstream grease score 
showed that the majority of restaurants with a grease trap size less than 150 lbs. were on 
the list of 30 potential problem restaurants (from Step 4). Only 4 of the identified “potential 
problem restaurants” had grease trap sizes of 150 lbs. or larger.      

81



 
 
  
Based on the results of Mr. Treanor’s analysis, a push camera was purchased by the 
Collections Superintendent who is in the process of training Source Control Staff to video 
inspect a restaurant’s lateral.  We will focus on the 30 potential problem restaurants in 
order to determine if grease is being released into the sewer system and gather video data 
to determine if there is a problem.     
 
The next step will be the “Improvement Step” and the results/success of the videos is a key 
piece of data as well as the grease trap size associated with the restaurants.  The next 
meeting of the Task Force is in mid-September. 
 
Riverwatch Agreement Resolution 
The Principal Engineer has commenced compiling data and drafting the report to 
summarize the work that has been completed as part of the settlement agreement with 
River Watch.  The most time consuming items encompassed the manhole inspections and 
pipeline inspections, which have been substantially completed by the Collections Crews.   
 
Her review of the agreement was used to develop a table of contents and she began writing 
the engineer’s report that is due July of 2023.   After reviewing the work that has been 
completed, there are tables and drawings that will need to be developed and a few items 
are pending such as the Sanitary System Management Plan (SSMP) Audit for 2022 and 
Pump Station Inspections.  The SSMP Audit will come to your Board at the August 2022 
meeting and staff have commenced the pump station inspections to be completed by the 
end of this summer.   
 
FUNDING-N/A- Informational item only 

82



Resolutions 

83



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
 
To:                  Board of Directors 

 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:              August 25, 2022 
 

Subject:          Sewer System Management Plan Audit 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve and accept the Sewer System 
Management Plan (SSMP) audit and authorize the General Manager to update the SSMP 
based on the findings of the audit. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
The District, as owner/operator of a wastewater collection system with more than one mile 
of collection lines is required to update the SSMP when significant changes have been 
completed or at least every five years and audit the SSMP every two years.  The SSMP was 
originally certified by the Board in April 2010 and was last updated on January 30, 2020.   
 
An audit was completed in July 2022, by Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather, and Collections 
Superintendent, Daryl Lauer.  The audit resulted in recommending minor changes to the 
SSMP that are noted in the attached audit report.  The minor changes are listed on the 
attached SSMP Change Log and individual pages are included that will replace the pages 
in the SSMP. 
 
Once the report and the resulting changes to the SSMP are approved, the updated SSMP 
document  will be posted on the CAWD website, as required by the State Regional Water 
Resources Board. 
 
FINANCIAL 
 
No impact 
 
Attachments:  2022 SSMP Audit Report, SSMP Changes, Resolution 2022-54 

 

  

84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-54 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE DISTRICT SEWER SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT PLAN (SSMP) AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER 

TO CERTIFY THE PLAN AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE WATER RESOURCES 
CONTROL BOARD 

-oOo- 

WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District owns a wastewater collection 

system and is responsible for complying with regulatory requirements associated with 

operating and maintaining a wastewater collection system; and 

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board requires wastewater 

collection system owners to develop, maintain and update a Sewer System Management 

Plan (SSMP); and 

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board requires an audit of the 

SSMP every two years; and 

WHEREAS, a SSMP Audit has been conducted by staff which resulted in minor 

changes to the SSMP that are noted in the SSMP audit report. 

WHEREAS, on this date the Board of Directors received and reviewed a report 

with conclusions from the District's Principal Engineer. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District, as follows: 

 

1. After considering the written staff report and verbal testimony, the Board 

Adopts the Carmel Area Wastewater District Sewer System Management 

Plan. 

 

 

98



 

2. The Board authorizes the General Manager to update the State Water 

Resources Control Board records documenting the approval and 

adoption of the updated SSMP. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on August 25, 2022 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:BOARD MEMBERS:  

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 

                                 ___________________________________ 

Ken White, President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ 

Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

 

 

99



STAFF REPORT      

 
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Barbara Buikema, GM 
 
Date:  August 25, 2022 
 
Subject:  Authorizing Continued Remote Teleconference 

Meetings Through September 30, 2022 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors proclaim a local emergency and authorize 
remote teleconference meetings for the period August 30 through September 30, 2022. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Since March 2020, Governor Newsom has issued a series of Executive Orders (N-25-20, 
N-29-20, N-35-20) declaring the State of California has been under a State of Emergency 
aimed at containing COVID-19.  The Executive Orders modified certain requirements 
created by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act) or the state’s local agency public 
meetings law. The District has been successfully operating under these conditions since 
they went into effect. 
 
On June 11, 2021, the Governor issued Executive Order N-08-21 which rescinds the 
modifications made to the Brown Act effective September 30, 2021. After that date, 
agencies are required to observe all the usual Brown Act requirements as they existed 
prior to issuance of the orders.   
 
However, after discussions with the California Special District’s Association (CSDA), the 
Governor’s office, and other stakeholders, the Governor’s office modified its approach 
and Assembly Bill (AB) 361 was introduced in February 2021 and provides local agencies 
with the ability to meet remotely during proclaimed state emergencies under modified 
Brown Act requirements, similar in many ways to the rules and procedures established 
by the Governor’s Executive Orders. Specifically, AB 361 suspends the requirements 
located in Government Code, section 54953. In short this means that during a state of 
emergency, under specified circumstances, local agencies can meet pursuant to modified 
Brown Act requirements. 
 
 

 

100



AB 361 extends public meeting teleconferencing until January 1, 2024. With the Omicron 
variant leading to a rise of cases in California, it allows local governments to continue to 
conduct virtual meetings as long as there is a state proclaimed state of emergency, but it 
will not be quite as flexible as it had been under the Executive Order.  It requires local 
officials to find that meeting in person would present an imminent safety risk to 
attendees. The key difference between Executive Order N-29-20 and AB 361 is that AB 
361 requires a public comment period where the public can address the legislative body 
directly. It prohibits the board from limiting public comments only to those submitted in 
advance and specifies that the board must provide an opportunity for the public to 
comment in real time. 
 
Local governments must reconsider the exemption every 30 days to ensure that the state 
of emergency proceeds and that local circumstances maintain that a health/safety risk 
exists. Essentially, the continued exemption of the Brown Act is dependent on when the 
State COVID-19 state of emergency ends. Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) has 
been open to the public for several months with a type of hybrid whereby the Board and 
legal counsel are in the board room and some staff members are remote.   
 
Staff is asking the board to approve continuance of open in-person meetings for the Board 
and referral of the public to the ZOOM link. Please note that we have also found some 
participants prefer to use ZOOM rather than making the trip to our offices – it is very 
convenient to sign on from home. We may find that we continue offering ZOOM 
meetings well after the pandemic disappears to accommodate customers who desire to 
participate virtually. 
 
Finally, the requirement is month-to-month renewal of the resolution. We will bring this 
item back to the Board monthly as long as the State of Emergency remains in force.  
 
 
FUNDING – No Impact 

101



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-55 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CARMEL AREA 
WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD), PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY, 

RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY 
GOVERNOR’S ORDER #N-25-20 DATED MARCH 4, 2020, AND AUTHORIZING 
REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF 

CAWD FOR THE PERIOD AUGUST 30 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2022, PURSUANT 
TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District (District) is committed to 

preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of 
Directors; and  
 

WHEREAS, all meetings of Carmel Area Wastewater District’s legislative bodies 
are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 
54963), so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s 
legislative bodies conduct their business; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provisions 
for remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, 
without compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), 
subject to the existence of certain conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the 
Governor pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of 
conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the 
state caused by conditions as described in Government Code section 8558; and  
 

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of 
disaster, or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions 
that are within the District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological, or human-
caused disasters; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and  
 

WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the District, specifically, a State of 
Emergency has been proclaimed – Governor’s order #N-25-20 dated March 4, 2020; and 

102



 
WHEREAS, a State of Emergency exists in California due to the threat of COVID-

19 and despite sustained efforts, the virus remains a threat, and further efforts to control 
the spread of the virus to reduce and minimize the risk of infection are needed; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that due to threat from the 
COVID-19 virus, and, California Occupational Safety & Health Administration  
(Cal/OSHA) COVID-19 Prevention Standards, AND, the District’s written COVID-19 
Prevention Policy has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety 
of persons within the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, 
personnel, equipment, and facilities of the District, and desires to proclaim a local 
emergency and ratify the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the State 
of California; and 
 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency, the Board of Directors does 
hereby find that the legislative bodies of Carmel Area Wastewater District shall conduct 
their meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government 
Code section 54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such 
legislative bodies shall comply with the requirements to provide the public with access 
to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   
 

WHEREAS, the District is holding public meetings but requires the public to use 
ZOOM for access.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CARMEL AREA 
WASTEWATER DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 
into this Resolution by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Proclamation of Local Emergency. The Board hereby proclaims that a local 
emergency now exists throughout the District, and meeting in person with members of 
the public or staff would present a risk of infection to all present in a meeting.  
 
Section 3. Ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board 
hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of 
Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 
 
 
 

103



Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager and legislative body of 
the Carmel Area Wastewater District are hereby authorized and directed to take all 
actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this resolution including, 
conducting open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 
54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of September 30, 2022, or such time the 
Board of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code 
section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the legislative bodies of Carmel Area 
Wastewater District may continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph 
(3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Carmel Area Wastewater 
District, this day of August 25, 2022, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  

ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 

 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Ken White, President of the Board 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

104



 
STAFF REPORT      

 
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
  Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 
 
Date:  August 25, 2022 
 
Subject:  Authorize Electrical Engineering Services for the Reclamation 

Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis System - Variable Frequency Drive 
Replacement  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the General 
Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Beecher Engineering for 
Electrical Engineering Services to assist Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) in 
managing replacement of Variable Frequency Drives (VFD) in the amount of $43,890. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Reclamation Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis (MF/RO) Facility is heavily reliant on 
VFDs for operation of the treatment equipment. The VFD at the MF/RO Facility were 
installed in 2008 and have reached the end of their 15-year estimated useful life. VFD 
failures at the MF/RO Facility over the past 5 years have been managed by maintaining a 
backup supply of identical spares for one to one “swap outs” by CAWD maintenance. 
Recently, CAWD discovered that the VFD platform currently utilized at the MF/RO 
facility has been suddenly discontinued by the manufacturer; and therefore availability 
of directly compatible VFD is quickly drying up. Staff has been forced to purchase several 
VFD from eBay over the past month to maintain a suitable stock of critical spares for the 
MF/RO Facility. A long-term solution for VFD replacement needs to be identified.  
 
CAWD staff requested a proposal from Beecher Engineering to evaluate alternative VFD 
makes and models so CAWD can select a preferred new VFD type to utilize moving 
forward.  
 

 

 

105



In addition, staff requested that Beecher provide electrical drawings that detail electrical 
design modifications necessary to integrate/retrofit the preferred new type of VFD into 
the existing electrical control centers.    
 
FUNDING 

     
The Reclamation Project financial stakeholders have provided approval via email for the 
cost of $43,890. These approvals will be ratified at the next Reclamation Management 
Committee meeting in November.  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Proposal – Beecher Engineering 
2. Resolution 2022-56 
3. Budget approval emails from Reclamation Management Committee financial 

stakeholders 

106



107



108



1

Patrick Treanor

From: Joe Huston <jhuston@ncga.org>
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 3:13 PM
To: reitzb; heuckd@pebblebeach.com; Sawin, John; jjwest@mpccpb.org
Cc: Patrick Treanor; nbecker@pbcsd.org
Subject: RE: MF/RO VFDs obsolete - Emergency Funding Request by CAWD

This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or 
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
Approved, 
Joe Huston 
  

From: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>  
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 2:59 PM 
To: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>; Sawin, John <SawinJ@pebblebeach.com>; jjwest@mpccpb.org; Joe 
Huston (jhuston@ncga.org) <jhuston@ncga.org> 
Cc: Patrick Treanor <Treanor@cawd.org>; Nick Becker - PBCSD (NBecker@pbcsd.org) <NBecker@pbcsd.org> 
Subject: RE: MF/RO VFDs obsolete - Emergency Funding Request by CAWD 
  
JJ & Joe: I’ll await your approvals before authorization to CAWD & RMC. 
Once I get the financial stakeholder’s approvals, it’s my understanding that Patrick will need to gain approval from his 
CAWD board, and we will also need to gain approval from the RMC Board. 
  
Nick or Patrick: Can you elaborate on those two processes? 
In the past, we have had to wait until CAWD officially approved the request that their next Board Meeting. 
As it relates to RMC, in the past we have “verbally” let them know,  with an official approval at the next Board Meeting. 
Let me know how you see streamlining these two processes so we can get Beecher Research going…. 
  
Thanks All, 
  
br 
  
Brent Reitz 
831-277-7897 cell 
Director of Energy & Water Conservation 
Pebble Beach Company 
  

From: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>  
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 2:50 PM 
To: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>; Sawin, John <SawinJ@pebblebeach.com>; jjwest@mpccpb.org; Joe Huston 
(jhuston@ncga.org) <jhuston@ncga.org> 
Cc: Patrick Treanor <Treanor@cawd.org>; Nick Becker - PBCSD (NBecker@pbcsd.org) <NBecker@pbcsd.org> 
Subject: RE: MF/RO VFDs obsolete - Emergency Funding Request by CAWD 
  
approved 
  

From: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>  
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 2:48 PM 

109

Treanor
Highlight

Treanor
Highlight



1

Patrick Treanor

From: JJ West <jjwest@mpccpb.org>
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 3:21 PM
To: reitzb; heuckd@pebblebeach.com; Sawin, John; jhuston@ncga.org
Cc: Patrick Treanor; nbecker@pbcsd.org
Subject: RE: MF/RO VFDs obsolete - Emergency Funding Request by CAWD

This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or 
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
Approved.  
 

 

JJ West 
General Manager 
Monterey Peninsula Country Club 
 
3000 Club Road 
Pebble Beach, CA 93953 
T: 831.333.2200 
F: 831.655.3049 
www.mpccpb.org 
 

 

 
 
From: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>  
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 2:59 PM 
To: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>; Sawin, John <SawinJ@pebblebeach.com>; JJ West 
<jjwest@mpccpb.org>; Joe Huston (jhuston@ncga.org) <jhuston@ncga.org> 
Cc: Patrick Treanor <Treanor@cawd.org>; Nick Becker - PBCSD (NBecker@pbcsd.org) <NBecker@pbcsd.org> 
Subject: RE: MF/RO VFDs obsolete - Emergency Funding Request by CAWD 
 
JJ & Joe: I’ll await your approvals before authorization to CAWD & RMC. 
Once I get the financial stakeholder’s approvals, it’s my understanding that Patrick will need to gain approval from his 
CAWD board, and we will also need to gain approval from the RMC Board. 
 
Nick or Patrick: Can you elaborate on those two processes? 
In the past, we have had to wait until CAWD officially approved the request that their next Board Meeting. 
As it relates to RMC, in the past we have “verbally” let them know,  with an official approval at the next Board Meeting. 
Let me know how you see streamlining these two processes so we can get Beecher Research going…. 
 
Thanks All, 
 
br 
 
Brent Reitz 
831-277-7897 cell 
Director of Energy & Water Conservation 
Pebble Beach Company 
 

From: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>  
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 2:50 PM 

110

Treanor
Highlight

Treanor
Highlight



1

Patrick Treanor

From: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 2:50 PM
To: reitzb; Sawin, John; jjwest@mpccpb.org; jhuston@ncga.org
Cc: Patrick Treanor; nbecker@pbcsd.org
Subject: RE: MF/RO VFDs obsolete - Emergency Funding Request by CAWD

This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or 
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
approved 
 

From: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>  
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 2:48 PM 
To: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>; Sawin, John <SawinJ@pebblebeach.com>; jjwest@mpccpb.org; Joe 
Huston (jhuston@ncga.org) <jhuston@ncga.org> 
Cc: Patrick Treanor <Treanor@cawd.org>; Nick Becker - PBCSD (NBecker@pbcsd.org) <NBecker@pbcsd.org> 
Subject: RE: MF/RO VFDs obsolete - Emergency Funding Request by CAWD 
Importance: High 
 
Patrick: Thank you for the Clarifications in RED below. 
 
IRWUG: Please see the CAWD request for an emergency design proposal at $44K (below in this email-chain, see AUG-
15th at 9:40 AM message) 
Please read the email below where Patrick answers my questions in RED. 
It seems apparent that CAWD needs immediate help in order to have the proper spare parts (VFD-Electrical Drive 
Equipment for Pumps) available should we have failures in the future. 
This $44K Request is the first crucial step in gaining recycled water security for the future. 
 
Given the background note in italic here, and CAWD’s request below, I recommend we authorize the emergency 
funding request for $44K below ASAP. (see attached) 
 
NOTE: Background on VFD’s and their role in our Plant: 
VFDs (variable frequency drives) control the pump motors and therefore control the operation of the pumps. Without the 
VFD the pumps can’t be controlled and thus we can’t control/operate the system. The VFD’s are critical, there isn’t really 
a work around if a VFD fails. Luckily we have redundancy of the pumps (and corresponding MF cells and RO trains), so if 
just one VFD goes down we can still run the rest of the equipment with little effect. But if we have multiple VFD failures 
going on around the same time and can’t replace the VFD we will start losing capacity. 
 
The issue with VFDs is a worldwide issue right now directly related to the “chip shortage”, it’s the same reason the 
Federal Govt just passed the “CHIPS Act” and why Pelosi just visited Taiwan. VFDs are used in all sorts of industry and 
critical infrastructure (not just water). That is why it takes a year to get a VFD right now. High demand, low supply. 
 
Thank You , 
br 
 
 
Brent Reitz 
831-277-7897 cell 
Director of Energy & Water Conservation 

111

Treanor
Highlight

Treanor
Highlight



2

Pebble Beach Company 
 

From: Patrick Treanor <Treanor@cawd.org>  
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 11:42 AM 
To: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>; Chris Foley <Foley@cawd.org> 
Cc: Barbara Buikema <Buikema@cawd.org>; Ed Waggoner <waggoner@cawd.org>; nbecker@pbcsd.org 
Subject: RE: MF/RO VFDs obsolete 
 

This message originated from an outside source: 

Use caution in opening links or attachments. 

 

Brent - See response below in red. 
 

From: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>  
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 9:40 AM 
To: Patrick Treanor <Treanor@cawd.org>; Chris Foley <Foley@cawd.org> 
Cc: Barbara Buikema <Buikema@cawd.org>; Ed Waggoner <waggoner@cawd.org>; nbecker@pbcsd.org 
Subject: RE: MF/RO VFDs obsolete 
 
This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or 
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
Patrick:  
I’m not clear on how the $44K Beecher Design Work dovetails with the $462K number Chris calls out in his original 
email. 
Chris refers to this as a “non-critical” issue, but your email below calls it out as needing to be approved “ASAP”…please 
clarify overall Timing requirements & reasoning. The $462K was to have Eaton completely replace all the MF/RO VFD. 
This was being looked at prior to the recent revelation that the SVX 9000 VFD were no longer being made, and it was 
likely to be budgeted in 23/24. The fact that the existing drives aren’t being made anymore changes the situation and we 
have to go back to square one and figure out what approach we should take (hence the Beecher scope of work request). 
We have some spares of the existing VFD (hence this isn’t a full-fledged emergency), but we were in the process of 
ordering more spares when we realized they weren’t available anymore. We could use up our spare VFD supply soon 
and new VFD’s can sometimes have a one year lead time. At this point we don’t know what VFD to order. We need to 
get our ducks in a row so we don’t get into a “too late” situation. 
 
What’s the Beecher Modification Design do for us once we get it? It will give us the details as to how to switch out the 
VFD with a new different model VFD, and it will help us select which new VFD model we should standardize on. This will 
give us the insight we need to develop an implementation strategy for managing these VFD at MF/RO. 
In other words… 

1. What’s the next step after we receive the engineering report? The next step would be to purchase the specified 
spare VFDs (new VFD model) with confidence. The lead times for new VFD could be ~ 1 year so that is why this is 
an ASAP situation.    

2. Is whatever the next step is, budgeted already? Line Item 68200 has $38K for various spares. I don’t think that 
will get us very far though. 

3. Is something “critical” potentially going to breakdown in the near future? Yes. The VFDs are a high risk of failure 
and have had ongoing repairs and swap outs. With the recent development with VFD obsolescence, the risk has 
increased significantly as supply of these VFD’s is drying up, which is why we are trying to figure out a new 
approach ASAP. 

112



3

4. If we have to budget for NEW VFD’s is that something for next year’s budget…or emergency purchase for the 
current year’s budget? Not sure yet. The process with working with Beecher will illuminate the maintenance 
strategy we should take. He already gave us some good advice that is helping steer us in the right direction. The 
fact of the matter is that the sudden obsolescence issue caught us off guard.  

 
Please clarify the Timing & All-In Expense of your request below,. I don’t think we will know the all in expense until we 
get working with Beecher. Finding the best strategy requires more digging, but we need help to get there. 
 
Nick: FYI  
 
Thanks, 
br 
 
Brent Reitz 
831-277-7897 cell 
Director of Energy & Water Conservation 
Pebble Beach Company 
 

From: Patrick Treanor <Treanor@cawd.org>  
Sent: Monday, August 15, 2022 9:21 AM 
To: Chris Foley <Foley@cawd.org>; Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com> 
Cc: Barbara Buikema <Buikema@cawd.org>; Ed Waggoner <waggoner@cawd.org> 
Subject: RE: MF/RO VFDs obsolete 
 

This message originated from an outside source: 

Use caution in opening links or attachments. 

 

Hi Brent, 
 
Regarding the issue Chris alerted you to in the previous email, we have been working with Beecher Engineering to devise 
a path forward to plan for replacing existing VFDs that are no longer supported with a different model VFD. Beecher 
Engineering has provided the attached proposal to provide us with a “modification design” for each VFD at the MF/RO 
Facility. 
 
Cost is $44k for Beecher’s engineering work, which was not budgeted because we did not anticipate that we would no 
longer be able to order replacement VFDs that match the existing VFD. This is a high priority issue because if we don’t 
figure out a good way to manage VFD replacement we are going to experience shutdowns of the system. 
 
Again this is a high priority and we need to get approval ASAP to stay in front of this issue. Please let me know how you 
would like us to proceed getting budget and contract approval for the $44K. 
 
Thanks, 
Patrick 
 
 
 

113



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-56 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BEECHER ENGINEERING IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $43,890 FOR RECLAMATION 
MICROFILTRATION/REVERSE OSMOSIS FACILITY VARIABLE FREQUENCY 

DRIVE REPLACEMENT 
-oOo- 

 

 WHEREAS, the Variable Frequency Drives (VFD) at the Microfiltration/Reverse 
Osmosis (MF/RO) Facility are at the end of their estimated useful life and have a high 
probability of failure; and 

WHEREAS, the existing VFD model used at the MF/RO Facility has been 
discontinued by the manufacturer and it is no longer feasible to obtain critical spares of 
these VFD into the future; and 

WHEREAS, electrical engineering services are needed to evaluate alternative VFD 
platforms and develop designs of electrical modifications to replace VFD when they fail; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Reclamation Management Committee financial stakeholders have 
provided written approval for the cost of the needed electrical engineering services via 
email. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into 
a professional services agreement, with a not to exceed amount of $43,890, with Beecher 
Engineering for Electrical Engineering Services for MF/RO Facility VFD Replacement. 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on August 25, 2022, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 
 NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 
 ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:   BOARD MEMBERS: 
      ________________________________ 
      Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
  Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

114



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  James Grover, Principal Accountant 
 
Date:  August 25, 2022 
 
Subject: Reserve Fund Balance Annual Adjustment 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution authorizing the 
adjustment of District fund balances to match the 2022-23 beginning budget balance as 
follows: 
 
 Capital Fund  $ 12,169,660 
 General O&M Fund $   8,626,815 
 
DISCUSSION 
This transfer of funds is to realign internal balances, as per policy at the beginning of the 
fiscal 2022-23 year. The policy provides for this realignment to be made at the start of each 
budget year and will therefore be reflected in July transactions. 
 
As per Reserve Policy dated March 2010: 
 
Capital Fund: “This fund will maintain a balance in funds equal to or sufficient to 
cover current year capital budget.” 
 
O&M Fund: “Maintain a minimum balance of 100% of the total operating budget.” 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
This is an internal transfer of funds only – it is to meet the Reserve Policy requirement to 
realign fund balances to budget on an annual basis. 
 
The transfer amounts required are: 
 

• Transfer $3,753,324 from General Operations & Maintenance (O&M) Fund and 
$4,254,215 from Capital Improvement Reserve to Capital Fund to bring balance to 
$12,169,660. 

• Transfer $3,753,324 from General O&M Fund to Capital Fund to bring balance to 
$8,626,815. 

  

115



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-57 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT OF THE 

DISTRICT’S RESERVE FUND BALANCES BY TRANSFERRING $3,753,324 TO 
THE CAPITAL FUND AND $4,254,215 TO THE CAPITAL FUND FROM THE 
GENERAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE (O&M) FUND AND CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT RESERVE, RESPECTIVELY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

DISTRICT’S RESERVE POLICY 
 

-oOo- 
 

WHEREAS, on March 25, 2010, the Board approved a Reserve Policy that 
provides for the annual adjustment of the District’s Reserve Fund balances to provide 
funding to: (a) establish a balance in the Capital Fund sufficient to fund the current 
year’s capital budget; and (b) establish a balance in the General Operations & 
Maintenance (O&M) Fund sufficient to fund 100% of the current year’s total operating 
budget; and 

WHEREAS, to fully fund the current year Capital Fund and the General O&M 
Fund, staff has recommended that the Board authorize the adjustment of the District’s 
Reserve Fund balances by approving an internal budget transfer in the amount of 
$3,753,324 to the Capital Fund and in the amount of $4,254,215 to the Capital Fund from 
the General O&M Fund and the Capital Improvement Reserve, respectively. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District that it hereby authorizes the adjustment of the District’s 
Reserve Fund balances and approves the transfer of $3,753,324 to the Capital Fund and 
the transfer of $4,254,215 to the Capital Fund from the General O&M Fund and Capital 
Improvement Reserve, respectively. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on August 25, 2022, by the following vote: 
  

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
 NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 
 ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: 
 ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 

        
        _____________________________ 

           Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

116



 Other Items & Information/Discussion

117



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  August 25, 2022 
 
Subject: Summary of Monterey County Treasurer 

Report dated 06-30-22 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Action required – requesting acceptance of report. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The U.S. economy during this period was characterized by the following factors:  high 
inflation, a strong labor market, depressed consumer confidence, and growing potential for 
an economic recession.  The Federal Reserve continues to tighten monetary policy through 
aggressive interest rate increases to battle persistent inflation.  Short-term federal funds 
rates are projected to reach 3.25% to 3.75% by year end.  The Federal Reserve also began its 
balance sheet reduction this quarter and plans to double the pace of this beginning in 
September. 
 
On June 30, 2022, the Monterey County investment portfolio contained an amortized book 
value of $2,705,970,313 spread among 259 separate securities and funds.  The par value of 
those funds was $2,713,566,160 with a market value of $2,638,757,893 or 98% of amortized 
book value.  The portfolio’s net earned income yield for the period was 0.71%.  The 
portfolio produced an estimated quarterly income of $4,603,330 that will be distributed 
proportionally to all agencies participating in the investment pool.  The investment 
portfolio had a weighted average maturity of 482 days.  The County Treasury continues to 
utilize short term debt to provide portfolio liquidity and enhanced investment 
opportunities. 
 
 
 
 
 

  

118



PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS 
 12-31-21 03-31-22 06-30-22 
Total Assets $2,473,716,071.02 $2,419,914,130 $2,713,566,160 
Market Value $2,471,600,788.14 $2,371,225,548 $2,638,757,893 
Days to 
Maturity 

503 505 482 

Yield 0.42% 0.40% 0.71% 
Estimated 
Earnings 

$2,371,429.71 $2,375,762.59 $4,603,441 

 
The Monterey County Treasurer’s portfolio consists of fixed income investments, all of 
which are authorized by the State of California Government Code §53601. 
 

PORTFOLIO ASSET COMPOSITION 06-30-22 
Corporate Notes 11.7% 
Overnight Liquid Assets 20.0% 
US Treasuries 40.4% 
Federal Agencies 13.5% 
Commercial Paper 8.6% 
Negotiable CDs 3.8% 
Supranationals 2.1% 
Municipal Bonds <0.1% 
Asset Backed Securities <0.1% 
 
Future Strategy:  Given the evolving market environment, the Treasury continues to 
strategically invest matured assets while accounting for potential liquidity needs.  As 
market conditions continue to evolve, the portfolio will be actively managed under the 
tenets of safety and liquidity while seeking to maximize the total rate of return.  
 
The investment portfolio was in compliance with all applicable provisions of state law and 
the adopted Investment Policy and contained sufficient liquidity to meet all projected 
outflows over the next six months. 
 
Note:  the Monterey County Treasurer Report is available on the Monterey County 
Treasury website.  
 

119

https://www.co.monterey.ca.us/government/departments-i-z/treasurer-tax-collector/treasury


Carmel Area Wastewater District 

WWTP Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project 
 

Construction Progress Report 
 

August 8th, 2022 
 

Prepared by: Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
Contractor: Clark Bros Inc (CBI) 

 

 

 
                

120



 

 

Section 1: Project Summary 

Project Summary 
General Contractor   Clark Bros Inc 
Contract Value 
Contract Bid Amount   $7,291,500 
Change Orders Issued to Date   1 
Value Added Change 
Order Cost (1) 

% of Bid Amount  $28,199.96   0.38% 

Non Value Added 
Change Order Cost (2) 

% of Bid Amount  $47,839.58  0.66% 

Total Change Order 
Cost 

% of Bid Amount  $76,039.54  1.0% 

Current Contract Value   $7,367,539.54 
Open/Pending Potential Change Orders (PCO)  3 
Contract Time 
Notice To Proceed  September 7th, 2021 
Original Contract Time   550 Calendar Days 
Calendar Days Elapsed   335 Days 
Weather Days: Accepted to Date   0 Days 
Contract Change Order(s) Time Extension   0 Days 
Current Contract Completion Date   March 3rd, 2023 
Contract Progress Summary 
Total Project Time Expended   61% 
Total Project Construction Cost Expended   43% (not including retention) 
Notes: 

1. Value Added Change Orders include: District Requested Additional Work and 
Betterments 

2. Non Value Added Change Orders include: Design Issues, and 
Unforeseen/Differing Site Conditions   

121



 

 

Section 2: Work Performed This Month 

2.1 General 

Work this month included major shutdowns of WWTP sewage conveyance to install 
mechanical piping and slide gates installation at the Influent Pump Station and 
Headworks. The sludge tank structure is nearing completion with installation of 
guardrails. Mechanical piping work is in early stages at the sludge tank. 

2.1.1 Submittals 

Submittals reviewed this month included equipment O&M Manuals. 

2.1.2 PLC Programming 

PLC programming by Frisch Engineering is in progress. 

2.2 Site Work 

2.2.1 Potholing/Locating Existing Utilities 

None. 

2.3 Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 

Guardrails installation was completed on the stairs and platform. Piping work was 
ongoing. 

2.4 Influent Pump Station Rehab 

Two shutdowns of WWTP sewage conveyance were conducted to allow for Clark Bros 
to install piping for new influent pumps. 

2.5 Headworks Rehab 

A shutdown of WWTP sewage conveyance was conducted to facilitate installation of 
new slide gates at the Headworks. 

2.6 Chlorination Building Rehab/3W System Improvements 

No work observed. 

2.7 Effluent Pump Station Rehab 

No work observed. 

122



 

 

Section 3: Project Issues 

In March 2022, Clark Bros informed CAWD of delays in procurement of the Motor 
Control Center (MCC) equipment. The MCC equipment will not arrive until September. 
Other major equipment has been arriving and will continue to arrive through August. 

Section 4: RFI and Submittals Review Summary 

The following table contains a summary of RFI/Clarifications and Submittals to date: 

  Total Number  

Processed 

Number Received   

in Current Month 

RFI/Clarifications  36  0 

Submittals  142  2 

 

Section 5: Change Order Summary 

Potential change orders (PCOs) are being generated for differing site conditions, owner 
requested changes, and design issues.  

 

Total Number 

Processed to 

Date 

Open PCO 

Pending 

Quote/Approval 

Number 

Generated in 

Current Month 

Total Cost 

Approved to 

Date 

Potential Change 

Orders (PCO) 

6  3  1  NA 

Change Orders  1  0  0  $76,039.54 

 

   

123



 

 

Section 6: Project Schedule and Budget 

6.1 Schedule 

A new Baseline CPM Schedule has been submitted. The new schedule reflects realistic 
equipment delivery dates now that deliveries are starting to arrive. 

6.2 Budget 

At this time the approved change orders amount to 1% of the project cost. The project 
management team is continually monitoring the costs of potential changes to manage 
costs. 

Currently the amount to be paid to CBI is 43% (not including retention) of the total 
approved budget (47% with retention). 

Section 7: Photos 

 Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
 Influent Pump Station 
 Headworks Rehab 

124



Photos:
Sludge Holding Tank 

Replacement

125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



Photos:
Influent Pump Station Rehab

133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



Photos:
Headworks Rehab

141



142



143



144



145



146



147



 
STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  August 25, 2022 
 
Subject: Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) – Regular Board 

Meeting on July 29, 2022 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Agenda items from the July 29, 2022, meeting that are of specific interest to this District: 

 
• Total cash balance at the end of June 2022 was $27.8M; of that amount $19.6M was 

designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves. Property taxes comprise 
roughly 80% of District revenues with user fees making up 22% of total actual cost of 
wastewater operations.  
 

• Total revenues through June 2022 in the cash based budget were $24.7M or 83% of 
budget.  Total expenditures were $18.8M or 63% of budget. Total wastewater 
expenditures were $2.6M. 
 

• Forest Lake Reservoir is holding 47 million gallons (MG) or 114-acre feet (AF) of 
recycled water.  This represents 41% of the permitted capacity of 115MG.  The 
current storage volume is 31% below the historic average of 68MG or 209AF.  
 

• Average daily wastewater flow of 369,000 gallons per day (GPD) was measured in 
June at the PBCSD-Carmel gate. This represents 33% of the total flow at the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District (CAWD) treatment facility. The measured PBCSD flow was 
6% below the five-year average of 391,000 GPD for the month of June.  The CAWD 
total flows were 6% below the five-year average of 1,202,000 GPD for June. 
 

• Total irrigation water demand for the 2022 calendar year through June was 588-acre 
feet (AF). Total demand for the calendar year is 44% above the 5-year average of 408 
AF through June.  The 2022 irrigation demand to-date through June is 25% above  the 
June 2021 total to-date demand of 472 AF.  The month of June reflected a net storage 
decrease of approximately 25 MG. 
 

 

148



• All five alternative source water projects were online and are producing a combined 
64,000 GPD.  Total production calendar year through mid-July was approximately 
8.4 MG.  The Pebble Beach Company recently commissioned a sixth alternative 
source water project – a new dry weather diversion facility located adjacent to the 
18th fairway of Pebble Beach Golf Links. 
 

• The Board authorized reimbursement to the Pebble Beach Company for an amount 
not to exceed $850K to perform pavement restoration activities along a large segment 
of Forest Lake Road affected by Construction activities related to the 
Undergrounding Overhead Utilities Project, Phase III Project. 
 

• The Board authorized the General Manager to enter into a contract with Graniterock 
(or other general contractor) to raise manhole frame and covers impacted by Caltrans 
paving activities on Highway 68. 
 

• The Board approved a proposal from The Paul Davis Partnership for completing a 
Facility Assessment and Master Plan at a cost not to exceed $25K.  Scope of this 
project will include a review of the needs and upgrades made to the existing facility 
and document suggested improvements and develop a Facility Master Plan. 
 

• Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) show: 
 

MONTH TOTAL CAWD FLOW PBCSD FLOW PBCSD 
July – 21 37.117 25.481 11.636 31.350% 
Aug – 21 36.578 25.206 11.372 31.090% 
Sept – 21 31.800 22.717 9.083 28.563% 
Oct – 21 35.625 24.518 11.107 31.177% 
Nov – 21 33.282 22.731 10.551 31.702% 
Dec – 21 55.861 35.261 20.600 36.877% 
Jan – 22 40.807 26.530 14.277 34.987% 
Feb – 22 31.191 21.369 9.822 31.490% 
Mar – 22 34.430 23.496 10.934 31.757% 
Apr - 22 35.101 23.329 11.772 33.538% 
May - 22 35.091 23.071 12.020 34.254% 
Jun - 22 33.717 22.656 11.061 32.805% 

Total 440.600 296.365 144.235 32.736% 
 

149



CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
SUMMARY OF RETIREMENT PENSION PLAN TRUSTEES 

MEETING HELD – August 4, 2022 

A meeting of the Retirement Pension Plan Trustees was held on Tuesday, August 
4, 2022, at 1:00 p.m.    

Those Present Included: Rob Wellington, Legal Counsel, Trustee 
Robert Siegfried, Director, Trustee 
Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Trustee 
Haley Hitchman, Hastie Financial Group 

Note:  This meeting was held via ZOOM software 

I. 2nd Quarter 2022 Review

The U.S. equity markets experienced some dramatic selling early and mid-May, 
primarily on concerns of slowing economic growth.  For the month of June, the 
Dow dropped 6.56%, the S&P 500 lost 8.225%, and the Nasdaq declined 8.65%.  
Year-to-date the Dow, S&P 500, and Nasdaq have lost -15.31%, 20.58%, and 
29.23% respectively.  This marks the worst first half of a year since 1962. 
Nonetheless there is hope for the second half of 2022 – since 1928 there have been 
26 bear markets, and the stock market has fully recovered and gone on to finish 
the year positive each time. 

For the quarter 04-01-22 to 06-30-22 the portfolio total weighted return was 
-12.80%. 

The U.S. equity markets rebounded in July for their first solid month of 2022. 
The gains for the month raised a question – was this the beginning of a market 
recovery or nothing but a bear market rally?  So far, the rally has largely held, 
but portfolio managers are still divided as to whether this is the beginning of a 
long-term recovery or a short-term bear market rally. 

Inflation continues to dominate the daily national headlines.  The Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) report for May read 8.6%.  In August the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics reports the CPI for the 12 months ended July 2022 fell to 8.5% from a 41-
year high of 9.1% in June. 

The bond market also enjoyed gains for the month of July, largely driven by 
falling long-term interest rates.  The yield on the 10-year Treasury declined to 
2.67% due primarily to investor concerns about slowing economic growth.  

150



This brought long-term interest rates to their lowest level in just over three 
months, which helped support both the US stock and bond markets. 

The gross domestic product (GDP) for the first quarter of 2022 decreased at an 
annual rate of 1.6%.  The Atlanta Fed’s forecasting model currently estimates 
second quarter GDP at -1.2%.  If another negative reading occurs, the US 
economy would fall into a technical recession.   The argument for recession is 
supported by the yield on 2-yr Treasury exceeding that of the 10-yr issue, known 
as yield curve inversion.  The 2-yr/10-yr Treasury curve has inverted 28 times 
since 1900.  In 22 of those instances a recession followed.  The yield curve has 
inverted before every recession since 1955, with a recession following between 6 
and 24 months.   In 2022, the yield curve first inverted on April 1 and has been 
going on for more than two months.  The argument against a recession in the US 
is the strong labor market.  Unemployment declined to 3.5%, the lowest level 
since February 2020.  The economy, although generating negative GDP, is still 
growing, and adding jobs. 

The Federal Reserve has raised interest rates 4 times in 2022 (03-17-22 +25, 05-05-
22 +50, 06-16-22 + 75, and 07-27-22 +75).  Some analysts are now seeing a smaller 
rate increase in September. 

II. 3rd Quarter Action Plan 
 
Hastie Financial has recommended multiple changes for the 3rd quarter including 
adding back in foreign markets, mainly Europe and adding an aggregate core 
bond holding.  Short duration will be less impacted by rate increases.   Hastie 
recommends a well-diversified portfolio remains the best path forward. 
 
Hastie is cautiously optimistic about the markets’ ability to recover given the 
recent resilience in the US economy.  The question is timing.  A change in the 
economic landscape could delay the recovery even further.  Their optimism is 
reflected in a portfolio that remains broadly diversified in US stocks and bonds 
with small allocations in foreign stocks. 
 
Portfolio Risk Measures (3-year measure): 
 Three 

Year 
 

S&P 500 
Five 
Year 

 
S&P 500 

Ten  
Year 

 
S&P 500 

Beta (a) 0.65  0.64  0.64  
Standard 
Deviation (b) 

12.38 18.64 11.02 16.95 8.90 13.70 

Mean 7.17 10.60 7.58 11.31 8.59 12.96 
Alpha -0.19  -0.24  .03  

(a) Strategy is to maintain Beta in the range of 0.60 - 0.67.   

151



(b) Strategy is to remain at roughly 2/3 of S & P 500, this is inline with current 
investment objectives. 

 
 

III.  PenChecks 
 
Staff presented PenChecks as an alternative to ADP for our pension payments to 
retired employees.  We currently are paying retirees who reside in three different 
states – California, Hawaii, and Florida.  ADP requires that we provide a state 
tax account however, since pension distributions are not wages both Hawaii and 
Florida refuse to issue a number.  That means we are currently paying 2 people 
who live outside of California as if they are California residents. 
 
We investigated the options and found that individual CPA offices are not 
interested in accepting the liability/responsibility to takeover our pension 
payments.  There are large third party administrators who will take it over if we 
move everything to them (i.e., investing, actuarial, and payments).  PenChecks 
will take on the payment portion of our pension only at $72/yr. per participant. 
 
The reason to outsource (as we are doing with ADP) is because is saves the 
District money.  The committee asked that we research PenChecks and 
determine if there are any adverse judgments against the firm.  We will return 
with this information at our next meeting. 
 
  
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 
2:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Barbara Buikema, General Manager  

152



2nd Quarter Performance Review
3rd Quarter 2022 Action Plan
August 4, 2022

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Defined Benefit Plan

153



2nd Quarter OVERVIEW

154



2nd Quarter OVERVIEW

155



2nd Quarter OVERVIEW

156



MORNINGSTAR STYLE BOX ANALYSIS: 2ND QUARTER 2022

Market Environment

 Interest rate increases

• May: 50 bps (0.50%)

• June: 75 bps (0.75%)

 Q2 GDP: -0.9% (advance estimate)

 Continued growth sector decline

 Inflation steadily increasing (June: 9.1%)

Actions Taken

 Maintain allocation shift from 

Growth to Value

 Maintain holdings in large cap blend

157



FIXED INCOME INDICES

Market Environment  

 Rising interest rates vs bond prices 

 Historical negative equity-bond correlation

 2022 – rare broad losses in equity and bond 

markets 

Positions Taken

 Bond proxies

• Managed futures

• Market neutral

 Shortened duration to minimize 

effects of rising interest rates   

158



3RD QUARTER 2022 ACTION PLAN

 Rebalance the rest of the portfolio

 Sell:
• Columbia Commodities Strategy 

• iShares MSCI Global Energy

• Invesco Dynamic Energy 

• Neuberger Berman Large Value 

• MFS Mid Cap Value 

• AlphaSimplex Managed Futures

• Victory Market Neutral

• Nuveen Floating Rate Income 

 Buy:
• Vanguard Value ETF

• Fidelity Mid Cap

• Oberweis Small-Cap Growth 

• iShares Currency Hedged EAFE ETF

• Schwab US Aggregate Bond ETF

• PGIM Short-Duration High Yield 

159



3RD QUARTER 2022 OVERALL PORTFOLIO

8%

12%

7%

14%

6%
3%4%

6%

14%

8%

6%

10%
2%

JP Morgan Large Cap Growth - 8%

iShares Core S&P 500 - 12%

Columbia Contrarian Core - 7%

Vanguard Value ETF - 14%

Fidelity Mid Cap Stock - 6%

Oberweis Small-Cap Growth - 3%

Bridgeway Small-Cap Value - 4%

iShares Currency Hedged EAFE ETF - 6%

Schwab US Aggregate Bond ETF - 14%

DFA Short-Duration Bond - 8%

Baird Intermediate Bond - 6%

PGIM Short-Duration High-Yield - 10%

Cash -2%

160



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

BETA:
A measure of volatility (risk) relative to the Standard & Poor's 500 Index.  Beta of 1.0 indicates 
risk equal to that of the Standard & Poor's 500 Index over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and  
10 years.  Beta of less than 1.0 indicates risk less than that of the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 0.65 0.64 0.64

161



FUND RISK & COST STATISTICS

Mutual Fund/ETF 3-Year Beta Net Expense Ratio 
JP Morgan Large Cap Growth 1.08 0.69

iShares Core S&P 500 1.00 0.03
Columbia Contrarian Core 0.98 0.75

Vanguard Value ETF 0.89 0.04
Fidelity Mid Cap Stock 1.04 0.85
Oberweiss Small-Cap growth 1.10 1.25

Bridgeway Small-Cap Value 1.09 0.92
iShares Currency Hedged EAFE ETF 0.78 0.35
DFA Short Duration Bond 0.31 0.22

Baird Intermediate Bond 0.72 0.30

PGIM Short-Duration High-Yield 0.75 0.75

162



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

STANDARD DEVIATION:

Another measure of volatility (risk).  A higher Standard Deviation indicates a higher degree of volatility 
(risk) over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years.  We will compare the CAWD Portfolio with 
the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year_
CAWD Portfolio 12.38 11.02 8.90 

Standard & Poor's 500 Index 18.64 16.95 13.70

163



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

MEAN:

Mean return over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years.  We will compare the CAWD 
Portfolio with the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 7.17 7.58 8.59

Standard & Poor's 500 Index 10.60 11.31 12.96

164



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

ALPHA:

A measure of risk-adjusted returns.  An Alpha of 0 indicates a return proportionate to the degree of 
risk taken.  A positive Alpha indicates a return generated in excess of the degree of risk taken.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio -0.19 -0.24 0.03

165


	01.A  Board Packet Cover
	3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923

	04.A 7-28-22 Mtng Minutes
	CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS
	RESOLUTIONS

	04.B 7-25-22 Salary & Benefits Minutes - in process
	CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
	July 25, 2022, 11:00 a.m.


	04.C 8-4-22 Pension Minutes
	Via teleconference webinar
	Bill Hastie, Managing Partner, Register Principal, Hastie Financial Group AIFA®, RMA®, C(k)P®, CPFA®
	The committee discussed the following agenda items:
	The committee decided to recommend that the attorney perform background checks on Pen Checks.

	05. H&W Bank Stmt Review - July 2022 gl
	06. Cash Receipts & Disbursements-July 2022
	0722
	ADPC51E.tmp
	graph 2


	07.  CAWD Disbursements
	08.  Recl Disbursements
	09.  July 2022 Fin Stmts
	10.A Collections July 2022 Board Report
	STAFF REPORT
	FROM: Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent
	RECOMMENDATION

	Permits Issued
	Maintenance
	Line Cleaning Table
	CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target)
	Manhole Inspection Table
	Riverwatch Update
	 Staff has completed the manhole inspection part of the River Watch Settlement. The Principal Engineer will use this data to schedule rehabilitation or replacement of damaged or deteriorated manholes. Project 21-06 Manhole Rehabilitation project was ...
	 Once the CCTV inspections and Pumps Station evaluations are completed, the Principal Engineer will use the information for the final Collection System Asset Management Plan.

	10.B Cleaning Map July 22
	10.C Collections CCTV Map July 22
	11. Staff Safety Report 07- July '22.v2
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	12. Treatment Facility Operations Report-July
	13. A Laboratory Staff Report-July Format Correction
	14. Implementation Plan Schedule 8-8-22
	15. Project Summaries 8-25-2022
	            ADP Workforce Now

	16. Plant Ops Staff Report July 2022_
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	Training:
	 Staff continues to complete online training at the treatment facility from Target Solutions as Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) implements its new safety policies for the Exposure Control Plan updates for the COVID-19 virus.
	 Staff continues to participate in scheduled tailgate safety meetings in the digester building conference room.
	• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor, on Project #18-01, the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, Chlorin...
	Meetings Attended
	 On July 15, 2022, The In-House Safety Committee met to review and update the Injury & Illness Prevention Program, with discussions on the upcoming Safety Culture Survey.
	Discharge Permit Violations
	• There were no violations of Reclamation Permit 93-72 for the month of June 2022.
	  There were no violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the month of June 2022.
	FUNDING-N/A-Informational item only

	17. Maintenance Staff Report 7- July 2022-V2
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	18.A Engineering Staff Report  August  2022 rll
	18.B Resolution Divder Page
	19.A 2022 SSMP Staff Audit Report
	19.B CAWD SSMP Audit Checklist Report
	19.C CAWD SSMP Changes Log
	19.D RES 2022-54 Approving & Adopting SSMP & Authorize GM Certify Plan 
	20.A Teleconferencing 08-25-22 Staff Report
	20.B RES 2022-55 Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings
	21.A Authorize Engineering Services for MFRO VFD Replacement Staff Report - Beecher Engineering
	21.B  Beecher_CAWD MF-RO VFD Replacement_8-12-22
	21.C  Golf Courses Approval Emails
	21.D RES 2022-56 Engineering Services for MFRO VFD Replacement - Beecher Engineering
	22.A  Reserve Fund Adj Report
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	This transfer of funds is to realign internal balances, as per policy at the beginning of the fiscal 2022-23 year. The policy provides for this realignment to be made at the start of each budget year and will therefore be reflected in July transactions.

	22.B  RES 22-57 Reserve Fund Adj
	RESOLUTION NO. 2022-57

	22.C Other Section Break
	24. Mo Co Treasurer 06-30-22
	25. Project #18-01 - Monthly Construction Progress Report - August 2022
	26. PBCSD 08-25-22
	DISCUSSION
	Agenda items from the July 29, 2022, meeting that are of specific interest to this District:

	27.A Pension Plan Meeting 08-04-22 meeting summary
	27.B CAWD 3Q2022 Performance Review
	Carmel Area Wastewater District
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13




